
BOARD PACKET
1000 W. Central Road Mount Prospect, Illinois 60056

August 21, 2024

Board of Park Commissioners
President Steve Kurka

Vice President Tim Doherty
Secretary Bill Starr

Treasurer Mike Murphy
Commissioner Mary Masnica
Commissioner Ray Massie
Commissioner Joe Tuczak



MT. PROSPECT PARK DISTRICT
BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS
REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 2024

Held in the Central Community Center Boardroom
1000 W. Central Road Mount Prospect, Illinois

6:30 PM

JANUARY 17, 2024
FEBRUARY 14, 2024
MARCH 20, 2024
APRIL 17, 2024
MAY 15, 2024
JUNE 19, 2024
JULY 17, 2024

AUGUST 21, 2024
SEPTEMBER 18, 2024
OCTOBER 16, 2024
NOVEMBER 20, 2024
DECEMBER 18, 2024

Board Approved: 11-15-23



TABLE OF CONTENTS
Regular Board Meeting August 21, 2024

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

III. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

IV. NEW BUSINESS

V. PUBLIC HEARING

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT

VII. STAFF RECOGNITION

VIII. ADOPTION ITEMS

IX. APPROVAL ITEMS

X. FINANCIAL ADVISOR’S REPORT

XI. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT

XII. PUBLIC COMMENT

XIII. COMMENTS / MATTERS FROM COMMISSIONERS

XIV. ADJOURNMENT



REGULAR BOARD MEETING
1000 W. CENTRAL ROAD
MOUNT PROSPECT, ILLINOIS 60056

TO: MT. PROSPECT PARK DISTRICT
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
PRESS
PUBLIC

FROM: STEVE KURKA, BOARD PRESIDENT

DATE: August 16, 2024

RE: REGULAR PARK BOARD MEETING
August 21, 2024 at 6:30 pm Central Time

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88632977751?pwd=WnpmdWQ2ODhmT1BEdk94WG9vcHhtdz09

Meeting ID: 886 3297 7751

Passcode: 833823

Phone: +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) Join Zoom Meeting

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

CHANGES OR ADDITIONS TO REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
All items identified may be considered routine by the Board of Commissioners and be enacted by one
motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Commissioner so requests, in which
event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and approved under its normal sequence on the
regular meeting agenda.

2024 Regular Board Meeting Agenda • Page 1 of 3
Accommodation is available upon request. Please contact Mary Kiaupa, ADA Coordinator in advance at 847-255-5380



● Approval Of Minutes: Regular Board Meeting, July 17, 2024

● Ratification Of Accounts Payable for July 2024 in the amount of $1,228,887.96

● Ratification Of Payroll for July 2024 in the amount of $544,075.15

*APPROVAL OF MINUTES
REGULAR BOARD MEETING: July 17, 2024
PLEASE BYPASS IF PREVIOUSLY APPROVED BY CONSENT AGENDA

NEW BUSINESS
A. 2024 Bond Sale – Speer Financial (Presentation / Discussion)

● Review of the District’s GO Limited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2024 BC(6-3-24 planning packet)
G:

PUBLIC HEARING
Bond Issue Notification Act (BINA) – Public Hearing concerning the intent of the Board of Park
Commissioners of the Mt. Prospect Park District, Cook County, Illinois to sell not to exceed
$2,000,000 General Obligation Limited Tax Park Bonds, the proceeds of which will be used for the
payment of certain outstanding obligations of the District and for the payment of expenses incident
thereto.

PUBLIC COMMENT

STAFF RECOGNITION
Recognition of Jim Jarog, Executive Director, for forty years of service to the Mt. Prospect Park
District

ADOPTION ITEMS
A. Resolution No. #854 - A Resolution Ratifying the Assessment for Calendar Year 2025 as

Recommended by the Board of Trustees of the Northwest Special Recreation Association

B. Wintrust Bank - Resolution #855 - A Resolution Designating Public Depository and Authorizing
Withdrawal of Public Moneys

C. Lakeside Bank - Resolution #856 - A Resolution Approving a Business Deposit Account Agreement
and a Custodial Agreement with Lakeside Bank and Approving and Authorizing Execution and
Delivery of an ICS Deposit Placement Agreement with IntraFi Network LLC

FINANCIAL ADVISOR'S REPORT

*RATIFICATION OF ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
July 2024
PLEASE BYPASS IF PREVIOUSLY APPROVED BY CONSENT AGENDA

*RATIFICATION OF PAYROLL
July 2024
PLEASE BYPASS IF PREVIOUSLY APPROVED BY CONSENT AGENDA

2024 Regular Board Meeting Agenda • Page 2 of 3
Accommodation is available upon request. Please contact Mary Kiaupa, ADA Coordinator in advance at 847-255-5380



EXECUTIVE REPORT

PUBLIC COMMENT

COMMENTS/MATTERS FROM COMMISSIONERS

ADJOURNMENT

2024 Regular Board Meeting Agenda • Page 3 of 3
Accommodation is available upon request. Please contact Mary Kiaupa, ADA Coordinator in advance at 847-255-5380



 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 August 21, 2024 

 

Statement by the Chair: 

All items identified on the consent agenda may be considered routine by the Board of 
Commissioners and may be enacted by one motion.  

There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a commissioner so requests, in 
which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and remain for consideration 
under their normal sequence on the regular meeting agenda.  

THIS MONTH’S CONSENT AGENDA APPROVAL ITEMS ARE AS FOLLOWS: 

• Approval Of Minutes: Regular Board Meeting, July 17, 2024 

• Ratification Of Accounts Payable for July 2024 in the amount of $1,228,887.96 

• Ratification Of Payroll for July 2024 in the amount of $544,075.15 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION (Requested by Chair) 

-Motion: “I move to approve the Consent Agenda as presented” 

-Second 

-Roll Call vote (Call the Roll on the pending motion) 

Page 1 



Regular Board Minutes
7-17-24

Unapproved
Mt. Prospect Park District
Regular Board Meeting

July 17, 2024

A Regular Board Meeting of the Mt. Prospect Park District, Cook County, Illinois, was held on
Wednesday, July 17, 2024 at the Central Community Center Facility of the Mt. Prospect Park
District.

President Kurka called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

Commissioner Starr called the Roll for the Board
The following Commissioners were present upon the roll:
Present: Kurka, Starr, Doherty, Masnica, Tuczak
Remote: Commissioner Murphy
Absent: Commissioner Massie

The following individuals were also in attendance (present or remote) at the meeting:

Administrative Staff/Recreation Staff: Jim Jarog, Executive Director, Alicia Brzezinski,
Executive Assistant, Ruth Yueill, Director of Community Relations and Marketing, George
Giese, Director of Administration, Mary Kiaupa, Director of Human Resources, Matt Dziubinski,
Director of Parks & Planning, Mike Azzaretto, Director of Recreation, Jon Zgoda, IT
Professional/ Remote Meeting Moderator, Jeff Langguth, Director of Golf Operations, Mary
Kiaupa, Director of Human Resources and Risk Management and Maddy Moon, Community
Relations & Marketing Coordinator

Professionals: Tom Hoffman, District Attorney, Lee Howard, CPA, GAI

Visitors: Michael Cassady, Village Manager at Village of Mount Prospect, Sean Dorsey,
Director of Public Works at Village of Mount Prospect, Matt Lawrie, Village Engineer at Village
of Mount Prospect, Salvatore Dibernardo, CEO of Ciorba Group, Inc, Drew Jensen, Lori
Jensen, Mike Jensen, Chris Lufitz, Cheryl Lufitz, Caroline Lufitz, Kenny Lufitz, Ken Lovandeski,
Diane Lovandeski, Timothy George, Mr. & Mrs. George and son, Barbara Sabaj, David King
and Gerry Stone, Parks Foundation Board Member

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

CHANGES OR ADDITIONS TO REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
None

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
President Kurka asked for a motion to approve the Regular Meeting Agenda as written. The
motion was made by Commissioner Starr and seconded by Commissioner Doherty. A voice
vote was taken; all were in favor and none opposed.

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

Page 2 



Regular Board Minutes
7-17-24

President Kurka read the following statement: All items identified may be considered routine by
the Board of Commissioners and be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate
discussion of these items unless a Commissioner so requests, in which event the item will be
removed from the Consent Agenda and approved under its normal sequence on the regular
meeting agenda.

● Approval Of Minutes: Regular Board Meeting, June 19, 2024

● Ratification Of Accounts Payable for June 2024 in the amount of $1,681,625.69

● Ratification Of Payroll for June 2024 in the amount of $482,676.44

● Approval of the Fifth Third Bank Commercial Card Service Agreement and Park District
P-Card Program

President Kurka then asked for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.

Commissioner Tuczak made the motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented,
seconded by Commissioner Starr.

Commissioner Starr called the Roll
Aye: President Kurka, Commissioners Starr, Doherty, Masnica, Tuczak, Murphy
Nay: 0
Absent: Commissioner Massie
Motion Passed

PUBLIC COMMENT
None

PARKS FOUNDATION
Mt. Prospect Parks Foundation Update and Presentation of Scholarship Recipients

Parks Foundation Executive Director Ruth Yuelil presented three deserving winners of the
Parks Foundation Scholarship Program for 2024. Ruth expressed it is one of her favorite nights
of the year on behalf of the Board and the Parks Foundation. Ruth gave an update on the last
year of activities hosted by the Parks Foundation.

The Foundation gave a brief overview of several events they hosted in 2024 and used a portion
of those annual fundraising dollars to award three $1.500 scholarships to active employees or
children of employees attending college or trade/technical schools in the fall of 2024. This
year’s applicants were asked to write an original essay with two questions to choose from.

The first question was: “An era is defined as a period of time in your life characterized by
something distinctive and notable. Tell us about an era in your life which resulted in growth,
change or a new perspective. How did that era help you to grow? What did you learn about
yourself? And, how have you changed as a result?”

Page 3 



Regular Board Minutes
7-17-24

The second question was: Consider the quote: “The only person who can stop you from
achieving your dreams is yourself.” Do you agree? What dreams have you put into motion in
your life? How do outside forces impact your ability to fulfill your dreams? How are you your
own best friend and possibly worst enemy?

Executive Director Yuelil then read an excerpt from each scholarship winner’s essay letter.

Drew Jensen, Caroline Lufitz and Timothy George are the Scholarship recipients for the 2024
Parks Foundation Scholarship.

The Board congratulated the winners and wished them luck on their future endeavors.

ADOPTION ITEMS
A. Resolution No. 852, A Resolution providing for and requiring the submission of the

proposition to issue $46,225,000 General Obligation Park Bonds to the voters of the District
at the general election to be held on the 5th day of November, 2024

Executive Director Jim Jarog gave a brief overview of the Park District’s 2024 Proposal, which
has been an effort of years in the making. The recommended Resolution is giving the District
the ability to proceed with a referendum question on the November 2024 ballot. The 2024
Proposal is a community-driven plan with widespread support from our residents. Following the
recommendation of the Citizen Task Force the Executive Director was asked to bring forth a
resolution to the Board to proceed with a referendum question on the November ballot.

The floor was then opened for questions or comments from the Board.

Question from Commissioner Masnica: Has there been anyone who has stepped up to do
marketing for the referendum?
Answer from Director of Administration George Giese: There have been a few citizens that
have reached out offering their assistance. Staff is not able to actively lead the marketing
portion of this process. We are only allowed to publicize factual information.

Question from President Kurka: How many people were on the task force?
Answer from Executive Director Jarog: There were approximately 30 task force members
present at each meeting depending on the meeting date.

Question from Commissioner Tuczak: What is the next step of the process?
Answer from Executive Director Jarog: If the Board adopts Resolution 852, then the next step
will be the marketing and campaign process run by citizens volunteer committee.

The ballot question was provided to the Board and was reviewed by Attorney Tom Hoffman.

There was no further discussion.

Page 4 



Regular Board Minutes
7-17-24

President Kurka asked for a motion to adopt Resolution #852 as presented.

Commissioner Starr moved to adopt Resolution #852 and was seconded by Commissioner
Masnica.

Commissioner Starr called the Roll
Aye: President Kurka, Commissioners Starr, Doherty, Masnica, Tuczak, Murphy
Nay: 0
Absent: Commissioner Massie
Motion Passed

B. Ordinance No. 853, An Ordinance Authorizing And Directing The Destruction of Verbatim
Audio Recordings of Certain Closed Session Meetings of The Board Of Park
Commissioners of The Mt. Prospect Park District

Alicia Brzezinski, Executive Assistant explained the details of the ordinance which authorizes
the destruction of verbatim audio recordings of closed session minutes. The minutes were
previously approved by the for meetings which took place at least 18 months ago or longer.
The eligible minutes are for January 19th, 2022, April 20th, 2022, July 20th, 2022, July 26th,
2022, August 17th, 2024, October 19th, 2022 and December 14th, 2022.

President Kurka asked if there were any questions for Alicia and/or Tom Hoffman, Park District
Attorney; there were none.

President Kurka asked for a motion to adopt Ordinance #853 as presented.

Commissioner Tuczak moved to adopt Ordinance #853 and was seconded by Commissioner
Starr.

Commissioner Starr called the Roll
Aye: President Kurka, Commissioners Starr, Doherty, Masnica, Tuczak, Murphy
Nay: 0
Absent: Commissioner Massie
Motion Passed

There was no further discussion.

APPROVAL ITEMS
A. Approval of the Fifth Third Bank Commercial Card Service Agreement and Park District

P-Card Program. *PREVIOUSLY APPROVED BY CONSENT AGENDA

B. Approval of the 2024 Rec Plex Indoor Swimming Pool & Tot Pool Renovations

Page 5 



Regular Board Minutes
7-17-24

Director of Parks & Planning Matt Dziubinski gave an overview of the proposed project scope
for Rec Plex Indoor Swimming Pool & Tot Pool Renovations.

He explained that the existing plaster on both pools was last redone in 2007 and the typical life
expectancy for a pool plaster finish is 10-15 years depending on maintenance practices and
pool chemistry.

The proposed improvement includes removal of the existing O-Zone systems and replacing it
with an Ultraviolet (UV) treatment system for both the competition and tot pools. For simplicity
and effectiveness, a UV system is the best supplemental sanitizer for pools and spas. They are
easy to install and very easy to maintain. The annual maintenance simply includes tube
cleaning and potential UV lamp replacement should their effectiveness become diminished.
A public bid opening occurred on Tuesday, June 25, 2024 with 2 contractors submitting a bid
for the project.

The apparent low bidder for the project is Pool Tech. Pool Tech has recently performed work for
both the Streamwood Park District and St. Charles School District including replacement of
pool equipment and a pool renovation. Pool Tech is a qualified contractor capable of doing the
work. If approved, the project will begin on August 1 and will be completed by August 30, 2024.

Matt then opened the floor for questions.

Question from Commissioner Starr: What is the life expectancy of the UV system compared to
the Ozone?
Answer from Matt: It is just a UV bulb/lamp that gets replaced if needed. Ozone is still used, but
requires significantly more maintenance by staff. The system should last until the next time the
pool will need to be replastered.

Question from Commissioner Tuczak: Will swimming lessons and lap swim be moved to
Meadows while the work is being done at Rec Plex?
Answer from Matt: Yes.

Question from Commissioner Masnica: When will you notify those who will be impacted by the
Rec Plex pool closure?
Answer from Matt: Mike and his recreation team have been communicating about the closure.
There will be notices published on our website and at facility entrances.

There was no further discussion.

Commissioner Masnica moved to Accept Base Bid “A” and Base Bid “B” for the Rec Plex
Indoor Swimming Pool Renovations and was seconded by Commissioner Starr.

Commissioner Starr called the Roll
Aye: President Kurka, Commissioners Starr, Doherty, Masnica, Tuczak, Murphy
Nay: 0
Absent: Commissioner Massie
Motion Passed

Page 6 



Regular Board Minutes
7-17-24

NEW BUSINESS
A. Village of Mount Prospect Melas - Meadows Pedestrian Bridge Update and IGA

Development

Executive Director Jarog gave a brief update to the Park Board on the Village’s longstanding
efforts to bring forth the Melas - Meadows pedestrian bridge to the citizens of Mount Prospect.
The proposed project would allow for the safe passage of pedestrian traffic between Melas and
Meadows parks by means of an elevated pedestrian bridge. The proposed project would
provide an ADA accessible route of travel over the Union Pacific railroad tracks as well as
Northwest Highway (Route 14), eliminating the need for users of the two parks to traverse the
three railway tracks and a high traffic four lane divided highway.

The Village has been successful in acquiring a significant amount of the necessary funding
through various grants. This funding would cover approximately 80% of the cost of the
proposed project. The Park District has not been asked to commit any future funding towards
this project.

If the Park Board is supportive of this project moving forward, the Village would be seeking a
partnership with the Mt. Prospect Park District by means of an Intergovernmental agreement
(IGA). An IGA between the Village of Mount Prospect and the Mt. Prospect Park District would
be required to allow the bridge entry points to exist on Park District owned and leased property.
If approved, such an agreement would allow for the future construction of the Melas - Meadows
pedestrian bridge. If the Board wishes to authorize staff to develop the proposed IGA, staff has
provided a suggested motion below for the Board’s consideration.

Mike Cassady, Village Manager thanked the board for allowing the Village to present at the
Board meeting and expressed his excitement for the Park District’s adoption of Resolution 852.
He then proceeded to give thanks to the Board and Executive Director Jim Jarog for continued
collaborations and partnerships with the Village. A brief update on the previously proposed
Cloud HQ donation and acknowledged to the Park Board that he would be providing a draft
IGA for their consideration in the not too distant future.

Sean Dorsey, Director of Public Works then proceeded with a presentation to the Board
outlining the details of the proposed project.

The floor was then opened for discussion.

Question from Commissioner Starr: What is the width of the bridge?
Answer from Salvatore Dibernardo: The width is 10ft.

Question from Commissioner Tuczak: Is this similar to bridges in the Buffalo Grove and Elk
Grove? Visually, they look similar.
Answer from Sean: Yes, this bridge is a similar concept, but longer and higher.

Question from Commissioner Tuczak: The northern ramp feeds into the parking lot; will that
affect traffic flow? Will there be a need to reconfigure the parking lot?

Page 7 



Regular Board Minutes
7-17-24

Answer from Sean: Yes, we are working on that and it could certainly be improved.

Question from Commissioner Masnica: How long is it from end to end (from start to finish)?
Answer from Salvatore: 1000ft.

Question from President Kurka: What are the time frames for this project?
Answer from Sean: There is a slide provided with a proposed schedule on the projector.

Question from Commissioner Starr: If there is lighting needed, where will the power source
come from?
Answer from Sean: It will definitely be lighted with solar power led lighting.

Question from Commissioner Tuczak: What is the duration of the construction period?
Answer from Sean: That will be determined during the design process. There will be an area to
stage construction so no area of use will be disrupted.

Question from Executive Director Jarog: How is the public feedback?
Answer from Sean: There has been supportive and positive feedback. Out of all of the projects
we’ve done, this seems to have funding.

Commissioner Doherty thanked the Village Staff for coming. He expressed that this bridge is a
win-win and sees all positives for us to move forward.

Executive Director Jarog then suggested if the Board was supportive of next steps in the
process, the development of an IGA for future Board consideration, that a recommended
motion has been provided for the Board’s consideration.

Commissioner Starr made the motion to authorize Executive Director Jarog and Attorney Tom
Hoffman to work with the Village of Mount Prospect to develop and bring forth an IGA, which
would allow for the construction of the Melas to Meadows Bridge, for future Board
consideration and approval; seconded by Commissioner Tuczak.

Commissioner Starr called the Roll
Aye: President Kurka, Commissioners Starr, Doherty, Masnica, Tuczak, Murphy
Nay: 0
Absent: Commissioner Massie
Motion Passed

FINANCIAL ADVISOR'S REPORT
Lee Howard, Financial Advisor and CPA for the District reviewed his June Financial report with
our Board: The report touched on the following areas: Banking Re-evaluation, Golf Report, Rec
Programs, Childcare Programs, RecPlex Facility Report, Pools Report, Central Programs and
Central Facility Report.

Lee Howard then opened the floor for questions/comments from the Board; there were none.

Page 8 



Regular Board Minutes
7-17-24

EXECUTIVE REPORT
Executive Director Jarog shared his Director’s report with the Board which included updates on
the following information: Public Engagement Update, Banking Relationships and the next
Board Meeting date and time of Wednesday, August 21st, 2024 - 6:30 pm at Central
Community Center.

The floor was then opened for questions and comments from the Board.

Comments from President Kurka: One of the key things with the referendum is “publicity.” The
number of citizens on the task force came up with the ideas on their own. It’s important to
compile the relative data of who was a part of the process for articles moving forward.

PUBLIC COMMENT
None

COMMENTS/MATTERS FROM COMMISSIONERS
Question from President Kurka: How many days have we been closed at the golf course?
Answer from Director of Golf Operations Jeff Langguth: There has been no dates of closure
this year.

Comments from Commissioner Starr: Congratulations to the Community Relations Department
on their upcoming fall guide. It’s great timing.

There was no further discussion.

ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION
Commissioner Doherty made the motion to adjourn Closed Session and seconded by
Commissioner Masnica.

Commissioner Starr called the Roll
Aye: President Kurka, Commissioners Starr, Doherty, Masnica, Tuczak, Murphy
Nay: 0
Absent: Commissioner Massie
Motion Passed

The meeting adjourned to closed session at 8:09pm. Commissioner Murphy excused himself
from the remainder of the meeting and did not enter the closed session due to his remote
attendance and the rules relating to the Open Meetings Act.

The Regular meeting was officially adjourned to Closed Session at 8:09 pm.

The Regular meeting reconvened at 8:14 pm.

President Kurka asked for the roll to be called.
Commissioner Starr called the Roll
Present: President Kurka, Commissioners Starr, Doherty, Masnica, Tuczak
Absent: Commissioner Massie and Murphy

Page 9 



Regular Board Minutes
7-17-24

TAKE ACTION, IF ANY ON MATTERS DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION

A. Approval of certain closed session minutes and to release to the public record closed
session minutes, if any as the Park Board deems appropriate.

Commissioner Doherty made the motion to approve the content of the following Closed
Session Minutes: January 17, 2024, Personnel, Section 2c-1 and Semi-Annual Review of
Minutes, Section 2c-21, Seconded by Commissioner Masnica.

President Kurka asked for the roll to be called.
Commissioner Starr called the Roll
Aye: President Kurka, Commissioners Starr, Doherty, Masnica, Tuczak
Nay:0
Absent: Commissioner Massie and Murphy

Commissioner Doherty then made the motion to Release the Following Closed Session
Minutes: I move that it hereby be determined and hereby be reported to the public that the
following sections of closed Session minutes for January 17, 2024, Personnel, Section 2c-1
and Semi-Annual Review of Minutes, Section 2c-21, which no longer require confidential
treatment and are available for public inspection and that as to all other closed session minutes
or portions thereof not yet released for public inspection the need for confidentiality still exists
in order to protect the privacy of an individual and/or the public interest, Seconded by
Commissioner Masnica.

President Kurka asked for the roll to be called.
Commissioner Starr called the Roll
Aye: President Kurka, Commissioners Starr, Doherty, Masnica, Tuczak
Nay:0
Absent: Commissioner Massie and Murphy

President Kurka then asked for a motion to adjourn the regular meeting.

Commissioner Starr made a motion to adjourn the regular board meeting, seconded by
Commissioner Masnica. A voice vote was taken with all commissioners present in favor and
none opposed.

The regular meeting was officially adjourned at 8:17 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

____________________
William J. Starr, Secretary

Page 10 



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

in the amount of 1,228,887.96$   as listed on the Check Register.

CHECK DATE CHECK #’S

7/1-7/7/2024 651,359.41$            203177-203226 Checks

7/8-7/14/2024 300,827.27$            203227-203260 Checks

7/15-7/21/2024 51,004.31$              203261-203292 Checks

7/22-7/31/2024 225,696.97$            203293-203322 Checks

TOTAL AP 1,228,887.96$         Checks and EFT's

PAYROLL

in the amount of 544,075.15$      as listed on this report.

CHECK DATE CHECK #'S

7/5/2024 272,516.29$            58476-58863 DD Notification
12,964.11$              1039180560- Checks

1039180587; 1039180594
58864-58869 Taxes, Transfers & Garnishments

7/19/2024 246,992.27$            58870-59258 DD Notification
11,602.48$              1039343740- Checks

1039343767
59259-59264 Taxes, Transfers & Garnishments

TOTAL P/R 544,075.15$            Checks and Direct Deposits

**Paper check numbers will not be sequential between check runs; account managed by payroll service provider.

Suggested Motion: I move to ratify July Payroll Checks and Direct Deposits 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE/PAYROLL DISBURSEMENT
July-24

Suggested Motion: I move to ratify July Accounts Payable Checks and EFT's 

Page 11 



Pay Period Ending 6/30/2024
Check Date 7/5/2024

Avg  Avg
 # Hours # Employees Gross Pay Hrs/Emp Hrly Rate

Total 17,222.75      416                       380,521.26    41 22                  

Full Time 64                         

Pay Period Ending 7/14/2024
Check Date 7/19/2024

Avg  Avg
 # Hours # Employees Gross Pay Hrs/Emp Hrly Rate

Total 16,080.75      416                       341,969.94    39 21                  

Full Time 63                         

Mt. Prospect Park District 
Payroll Summary

Page 12 



To: Board of Park Commissioners

From: Jim Jarog, Executive Director

Cc: George Giese, Director of Administration
Tom Hoffman, Park District Attorney
Lee Howard, CPA, Financial Advisor GAI

Date: August 21, 2024

Re: Review of the District’s GO Limited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2024 BC

Summary and Background:

Speer Financial is with us tonight to review the financing plan surrounding the issuance of the
District’s annual Rollover Bonds. The purpose of the Rollover Bonds is to fill the District’s
non-referendum bond and interest property tax levy and to use the proceeds generated from the
issuance of the Rollover Bonds to retire certain outstanding obligations of the District.

Speer is available to answer any questions regarding the issuance of the District’s annual
rollover bond or rollover bond financing model

Documents Attached:

● Mt. Prospect PD, GO Limited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2024 BC (Planning Packet 6-3-24)

Recommendation:

NO ACTION AT THIS TIME. FOR BOARD REVIEW AND DISCUSSION ONLY

Page 13 



Mt. Prospect Park District, Cook County, Illinois

General Obligation Limited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2024B &
Taxable General Obligation Limited Tax Park bonds, Series 2024C

(collectively the “Rollover Bonds”)

PL AN NI NG PACK ET  –  J UNE 3 ,  20 24

Page 14 



Mr. Jim Jarag
Executive Director
Mt. Prospect Park District
1000 West Central Road
Mt. Prospect, Illinois  60056

Dear Jim:

General Obligation Limited Tax Park bonds, or the Rollover Bonds, are payable from a direct 
property tax that is limited by the District’s Debt Service Extension Base.  The District has 
annually issued rollover bonds to fully utilize this levying capacity and has used the proceeds 
from these bonds to pay other prior obligations of the District and to provide additional 
funding to support the capital improvement program of the District. 

This planning packet is structured to provide you with the preliminary details of the proposed 
issuance and is designed to aid the decision-making process.  Current and future market 
conditions and interest rates are subject to change and any information based on such market 
conditions and interest rates is not guaranteed.

Speer Financial, Inc. is not affiliated with any broker-dealer nor do we serve in any capacity 
other than municipal advisor.  This enables Speer to offer unbiased advice solely in the 
District’s best interests and avoid any conflicts of interest. Should you have any questions 
regarding any information presented in this planning packet please don’t hesitate to reach out 
to me.  I look forward to assisting you through this process.

Sincerely,

Aaron Gold

Vice President
Speer Financial, Inc.
(847) 533-2154
agold@speerfinancial.com

Speer Financial, Inc.

§ Independent municipal 
advisor to the District since 
1988

§ Financial planning, refunding 
analysis and debt modeling 
services

§ Continuing disclosure 
services

§ Serving over 80 Park and 
Forest Preserve District 
Clients*

230 W. Monroe Street, Suite 2630

Chicago, Illinois 60606

(312) 346-3700

www.speerfinancial.com

*Based on Speer Financial, Inc. Records

2
Page 15 



CONTACT PARTY ORGANIZTION EMAIL PHONE

Jim Jarog Executive Director Mt. Prospect Park District jjarog@mppd.org (847) 255-5380

George Giese Director of Administration Mt. Prospect Park District ggiese@mppd.org (847) 255-5380

Tom Hoffman Local Counsel Law Office of Thomas G. Hoffman parklaw7@gmail.com (312) 213-8793

Anjali Vij Bond Counsel Chapman and Cutler LLP anjvij@chapman.com (312) 845-3472

Jennifer Krah Bond Counsel Chapman and Cutler LLP jkrah@chapman.com (312) 845-3827

Lee Howard Finance Consultant Governmental Accounting, Inc. ljsh1@hotmail.com (847) 991-3909

Dan Forbes Municipal Advisor Speer Financial, Inc. dforbes@speerfinancial.com (312) 780-2281

Aaron Gold Municipal Advisor Speer Financial, Inc. agold@speerfinancial.com (847) 533-2154

Henrietta Skolnick Municipal Advisor Speer Financial, Inc. hskolnick@speerfinancial.com (312) 346-3700

Samantha Bagwell Municipal Advisor Speer Financial, Inc. sbagwell@speerfinancial.com (312) 529-5886

Distribution list

Speer Financial, Inc. 3
Page 16 



Speer Financial, Inc. 4

TASK PARTY RESPONSIBLE DATE

BINA Publication Deadline District 8/14/2024

BINA Public Hearing District 8/21/2024

Bids Received All Parties 9/17/2024

Adopt Bond Ordinance District 9/18/2024

Closing All Parties 10/2/2024

Financing Timetable

Newspaper Publication Event Board Action

Page 17 



Bond Issue Notification Act (BINA)

• The BINA requires a Board to hold a 
public hearing concerning the District’s 
intent to sell General Obligation Bonds 
prior to adopting a bond ordinance.

Definition:

• Proceeds that are used to refund other 
obligations.

• The District is issuing general obligation 
bonds that have been approved via a 
referendum.

Exemptions:

• A notice of the public hearing must be published not less than seven and not more than thirty days before the public hearing.
• The notice of the public hearing must be posted at the principal office of the Park Board at least two days before the public hearing.
• The Park Board is required to wait seven days following the BINA Hearing before adopting the bond ordinance.

Requirements:

• The authority to issue is security specific 
and remains in effect for three years after 
the date of the BINA hearing.

Expiration:

5Speer Financial, Inc.

Date BINA Amount Amount Utilized Remaining Capacity Expires

8/19/2020 3,750,000                                    3,507,025                     242,975 2023
8/18/2021 3,300,000                                    3,155,675                     144,325 2024
3/16/2022 2,000,000                                    1,844,980                     155,020 2025
8/16/2023 2,500,000                                    2,200,780                     299,220 2026
1/17/2024 2,400,000                                    2,169,120                     230,880 2027
8/21/2024 2,000,000                                    1,863,515  *                     136,485 2028

*Preliminary subject to change

Page 18 



GO Limited Tax Park Bonds:
 Sizing Constraints

Speer Financial, Inc.
Page 19 



Debt Capacity

7Speer Financial, Inc.

Non-Referendum Total
Debt Capacity Debt Capacity

0.575% of EAV 2.875% of EAV
Equalized Assessed Value (2022 Levy Year)           2,186,488,184 
Non-Referendum Debt Capacity 12,572,307                  
Tota Debt Capacity 62,861,535              

General  Obligation Bonded Debt: Final Maturity Date:
GO Park Bonds (ARS), Series 2014A 11/1/2034 7,145,000                 -                                 -                            
Debt Certificates, Series 2014B 11/1/2027 425,000                     -                                 425,000                   
GO Refunding Park Bonds (ARS), Series 2019C 11/1/2025 1,040,000                 -                                 -                            
GO Park Bonds (ARS), Series 2022A 11/1/2041 8,215,000                 -                                 -                            
GO Limited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2022B 12/15/2024 1,251,270                 1,251,270                     1,251,270                
GO Limited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2023A 12/15/2024 1,888,370                 1,888,370                     1,888,370                
Taxable GO Limited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2023B 12/15/2024 312,410                     312,410                        312,410                   
Taxable GO Limited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2024A 12/15/2025 2,169,120                 2,169,120                     2,169,120                
GO Limited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2024B* 12/15/2025 1,568,160                 1,568,160                     1,568,160                
Taxable GO Limited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2024C* 12/15/2025 295,355                     295,355                        295,355                   

Total 24,309,685               7,484,685                     7,909,685                

Remaining Debt Capacity* 5,087,622                     54,951,850              

*Preliminary, subject to change (as of 10/2/2024).

Page 20 



Debt Service Extension Base (DSEB)

8Speer Financial, Inc.

Year DSEB CPI Increase Increase
Base 2,648,128.75  
2009 2,650,776.87  0.10% 2,648.12          
2010 2,722,347.84  2.70% 74,219.09        
2011 2,763,183.05  1.50% 115,054.30     
2012 2,846,078.54  3.00% 197,949.79     
2013 2,894,461.87  1.70% 246,333.12     
2014 2,937,878.79  1.50% 289,750.04     
2015 2,961,381.82  0.80% 313,253.07     
2016 2,982,111.49  0.70% 333,982.74     
2017 3,044,735.83  2.10% 396,607.08     
2018 3,108,675.28  2.10% 460,546.53     
2019 3,167,740.11  1.90% 519,611.36     
2020 3,240,598.13  2.30% 592,469.38     
2021 3,285,966.50  1.40% 637,837.75     
2022 3,450,264.82  5.00% 802,136.07     
2023 3,622,778.06  5.00% 974,649.31     
2024 3,745,952.51  3.40% 1,097,823.76  

Page 21 



The Rollover Bonds:
 Preliminary Financing Model

Speer Financial, Inc.
Page 22 



10Speer Financial, Inc.

DSEB
Levy Bond Series Series Series Series Series Series Margin
Year Year DSEB 2022B 2023A 2023B 2024A 2024B* 2024C* Total
2023 2024 3,622,778.06  1,294,563.94  1,995,531.85  332,682.11 -                    -                    -                3,622,777.90  0.16                   
2024 2025 3,745,952.51  -                    -                    -                2,373,395.67  1,059,436.49  313,117.32 3,745,949.48  3.03                   
2025 2026 3,745,952.51  -                    -                    -                -                    621,653.50     -                621,653.50     3,124,299.01  

 

Mt. Prospect Park District, Cook County, Illinois 
General Obligation Limited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2024B 
Dated: October 2, 2024 | ***Preliminary*** 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Levy DSEB Total
10/02/2024 - - - - -
12/15/2025 973,845.00 4.500% 85,591.49 1,059,436.49 2024 1,059,436.49
06/15/2026 - - 13,669.25 13,669.25 -
12/15/2026 594,315.00 4.600% 13,669.25 607,984.25 2025 621,653.50

Total $1,568,160.00 - $112,929.99 $1,681,089.99 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $2,480.46
Average Life 1.582 Years
Average Coupon 4.5527787%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 4.5527787%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 4.4977592%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 4.4977592%
 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 4.5527787%
Weighted Average Maturity 1.582 Years

Page 23 



11Speer Financial, Inc.

 

Mt. Prospect Park District, Cook County, Illinois 
Taxable General Obligation Limited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2024C 
***Preliminary*** 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Levy DSEB Total
10/02/2024 - - - - -
12/15/2025 295,355.00 5.000% 17,762.32 313,117.32 2024 313,117.32

Total $295,355.00 - $17,762.32 $313,117.32 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $355.25
Average Life 1.203 Years
Average Coupon 4.9999996%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 4.9999996%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 4.9148384%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 4.9148384%
 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 4.9999996%
Weighted Average Maturity 1.203 Years

DSEB
Levy Bond Series Series Series Series Series Series Margin
Year Year DSEB 2022B 2023A 2023B 2024A 2024B* 2024C* Total
2023 2024 3,622,778.06  1,294,563.94  1,995,531.85  332,682.11 -                    -                    -                3,622,777.90  0.16                   
2024 2025 3,745,952.51  -                    -                    -                2,373,395.67  1,059,436.49  313,117.32 3,745,949.48  3.03                   
2025 2026 3,745,952.51  -                    -                    -                -                    621,653.50     -                621,653.50     3,124,299.01  

Page 24 



12Speer Financial, Inc.

Security: GO LTD GO LTD
Tax Status: Tax-Exempt Taxable

Issue: Series 2024B Series 2024C Total
Issue Size: 1,568,160.00                    295,355.00                        1,863,515.00                

Costs of Issuance Vendor Total
Financial Advisor Fee Speer Financial Inc. 10,000.00                          500.00                                10,500.00                      
Bond Counsel Fee Chapman and Cutler LLP 10,000.00                          500.00                                10,500.00                      
Local Counsel Fee Tom Hoffman 7,100.00                            -                                       7,100.00                         

Total Costs of Issuance 27,100.00                          1,000.00                            28,100.00                      

Prior Obligations Payment Date Total
Series 2014A 11/1/2024 631,596.88                        -                                       631,596.88                    
Series 2014A 5/1/2025 -                                       123,471.88                        123,471.88                    
Series 2014B 11/1/2024 108,500.00                        -                                       108,500.00                    
Series 2014B 5/1/2025 -                                       6,500.00                            6,500.00                         
Series 2017B 11/1/2024 -                                       -                                       -                                   
Series 2019C 11/1/2024 522,645.50                        -                                       522,645.50                    
Series 2019C 5/1/2025 -                                       3,937.50                            3,937.50                         
Series 2022A 11/1/2024 278,315.63                        -                                       278,315.63                    
Series 2022A 5/1/2025 -                                       160,440.63                        160,440.63                    

Total Debt Payments 1,541,058.01                    294,350.01                        1,835,408.02                

Capital Proceeds Total
Total Capital Proceeds -                                       -                                       -                                   

Rounding 1.99                                     4.99                                     6.98                                 

Method of Sale 
Competitive Term                     

Sheet Sale
Corporate Fund                  
Self-Purchase

Mt. Prospect Park District, Cook County, Illinois
General Obligation Limited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2024B

Taxable General Obligation Limited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2024C
Preliminary Costs of Issuance/Allocation of Proceeds

Page 25 



Speer Financial, Inc.

Levy 
Year

Projected 
Rollover 
Length

DSEB 1,2
MRMA 

Settlement 
Proceeds

Annual Rollover 
Bonds Proceeds       
(Net of COI) 1, 2

Bond 
Year

Series 2014A  
(11/1 & 5/1)

Series 2014B 
(11/1 & 5/1)

Series 2017B 
(11/1)

Series 2019C 
(11/1 & 5/1)

Series 2022A (11/1 
& 5/1)

Series 2025A       
(11/1 & 5/1) 3

Series 2029A          
(11/1 & 5/1) 3

Total 1
Annual Rollover 
Bond Capital1 ARS Capital  1 Total Capital 1

2022 2yr 3,450,265         -                    1,815,830              2023 266,931              123,000              571,144              530,840              323,909                  -                           -                           1,815,824           6                            8,330,000           8,330,006            
2023 1yr 3,622,778         -                    2,170,080              2024 380,063              119,000              576,244              528,861              326,631                  -                           -                           1,930,798           239,282               -                       239,282               
2024 2yr 3,745,953         2,138,220        1,835,415              2025 755,069              115,000              -                       526,583              438,756                  -                           -                           1,835,408           -                        -                       -                        
2025 1yr 3,802,142         -                    2,980,000              2026 743,738              115,900              -                       528,938              320,881                  511,300                  -                           2,220,756           759,244               6,900,000           7,659,244            
2026 1yr 3,859,174         -                    3,665,000              2027 1,119,694           116,600              -                       -                       320,881                  511,700                  -                           2,068,875           1,596,125            -                       1,596,125            
2027 1yr 3,917,000         -                    3,719,000              2028 1,087,453           112,200              -                       -                       320,881                  511,700                  -                           2,032,234           1,686,766            -                       1,686,766            
2028 1yr 3,975,000         -                    3,774,000              2029 1,039,363           -                       -                       -                       437,881                  511,300                  -                           1,988,544           1,785,456            -                       1,785,456            
2029 1yr 4,034,000         -                    3,830,000              2030 1,005,988           -                       -                       -                       470,881                  510,500                  90,038                    2,077,406           1,752,594            5,000,000           6,752,594            
2030 1yr 4,094,000         -                    3,887,000              2031 624,269              -                       -                       -                       852,881                  509,300                  386,400                  2,372,850           1,514,150            -                       1,514,150            
2031 1yr 4,155,000         -                    3,945,000              2032 614,019              -                       -                       -                       863,881                  507,700                  388,875                  2,374,475           1,570,525            -                       1,570,525            
2032 1yr 4,217,000         -                    4,004,000              2033 607,600              -                       -                       -                       802,581                  510,600                  386,088                  2,306,869           1,697,131            -                       1,697,131            
2033 1yr 4,280,000         -                    4,064,000              2034 604,800              -                       -                       -                       802,506                  508,000                  388,038                  2,303,344           1,760,656            -                       1,760,656            
2034 1yr 4,344,000         -                    4,124,000              2035 336,600              -                       -                       -                       803,900                  509,900                  384,725                  2,035,125           2,088,875            -                       2,088,875            
2035 1yr 4,409,000         -                    4,185,000              2036 -                       -                       -                       -                       803,522                  511,200                  386,150                  1,700,872           2,484,128            -                       2,484,128            
2036 1yr 4,475,000         -                    4,247,000              2037 -                       -                       -                       -                       801,688                  511,900                  387,225                  1,700,813           2,546,188            -                       2,546,188            
2037 1yr 4,542,000         -                    4,310,000              2038 -                       -                       -                       -                       802,000                  507,100                  383,038                  1,692,138           2,617,863            -                       2,617,863            
2038 1yr 4,610,000         -                    4,374,000              2039 -                       -                       -                       -                       804,600                  511,700                  383,588                  1,699,888           2,674,113            -                       2,674,113            
2039 1yr 4,679,000         -                    4,439,000              2040 -                       -                       -                       -                       801,100                  510,600                  383,788                  1,695,488           2,743,513            -                       2,743,513            
2040 1yr 4,749,000         -                    4,505,000              2041 -                       -                       -                       -                       801,500                  508,900                  383,638                  1,694,038           2,810,963            -                       2,810,963            
2041 1yr 4,820,000         -                    4,572,000              2042 -                       -                       -                       -                       800,700                  511,500                  383,138                  1,695,338           2,876,663            -                       2,876,663            
2042 1yr 4,892,000         -                    4,640,000              2043 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           508,400                  387,200                  895,600              3,744,400            -                       3,744,400            
2043 1yr 4,965,000         -                    4,709,000              2044 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           509,600                  385,825                  895,425              3,813,575            -                       3,813,575            
2044 1yr 5,039,000         -                    4,779,000              2045 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           510,000                  384,100                  894,100              3,884,900            -                       3,884,900            
2045 1yr 5,114,000         -                    4,850,000              2046 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           382,025                  382,025              4,467,975            -                       4,467,975            
2046 1yr 5,190,000         -                    4,922,000              2047 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           384,513                  384,513              4,537,488            -                       4,537,488            
2047 1yr 5,267,000         -                    4,995,000              2048 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           381,563                  381,563              4,613,438            -                       4,613,438            
2048 1yr 5,346,000         -                    5,069,000              2049 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           -                       5,069,000            -                       5,069,000            
2049 1yr 5,426,000         -                    5,145,000              2050 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           -                       5,145,000            -                       5,145,000            
2050 1yr 5,507,000         -                    5,222,000              2051 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           -                       5,222,000            -                       5,222,000            

9,185,584           701,700              1,147,387           2,115,221           12,701,563            10,202,900            7,019,950              43,074,305         75,702,013         20,230,000        95,932,013         

Call  Date: Call  Date: 11/1/2022 11/1/2022 NA NA 11/1/2031 11/1/2033 11/1/2038

1 Prel iminary, subject to change.
2 The DSEB is estimated to grow at a rate of 1.50% per year.
3 Future alternate bonds are estimated assuming a 4.0% net interest cost and costs of issuance equal to $17.50/$1000 of the par amount of the bonds issued.

Mount Prospect PD - Preliminary Financing Model 
Updated: 6/3/2024

Sources Prior Obligations Projected Capital

Page 26 



Outstanding General Obligation
 Limited Tax Park Bonds

Speer Financial, Inc.
Page 27 



15Speer Financial, Inc.

DSEB
Levy Bond Series Series Series Series Series Series Margin
Year Year DSEB 2022B 2023A 2023B 2024A 2024B* 2024C* Total
2023 2024 3,622,778.06  1,294,563.94  1,995,531.85  332,682.11 -                    -                    -                3,622,777.90  0.16                   
2024 2025 3,745,952.51  -                    -                    -                2,373,395.67  1,059,436.49  313,117.32 3,745,949.48  3.03                   
2025 2026 3,745,952.51  -                    -                    -                -                    621,653.50     -                621,653.50     3,124,299.01  

 

Mt. Prospect Park District, Cook County, Illinois 
Taxable General Obligation Limited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2024A 
Dated: February 28, 2024 | ***Final - MRMA Settlement Model*** 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Levy DSEB Total
02/28/2024 - - - - -
06/15/2025 - - 147,444.73 147,444.73 -
12/15/2025 2,169,120.00 5.240% 56,830.94 2,225,950.94 2024 2,373,395.67

Total $2,169,120.00 - $204,275.67 $2,373,395.67 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $3,898.39
Average Life 1.797 Years
Average Coupon 5.2400000%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 5.2400000%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 5.1623888%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 5.1623888%
 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 5.2400000%
Weighted Average Maturity 1.797 Years

Page 28 



16

16Speer Financial, Inc.

DSEB
Levy Bond Series Series Series Series Series Series Margin
Year Year DSEB 2022B 2023A 2023B 2024A 2024B* 2024C* Total
2023 2024 3,622,778.06  1,294,563.94  1,995,531.85  332,682.11 -                    -                    -                3,622,777.90  0.16                   
2024 2025 3,745,952.51  -                    -                    -                2,373,395.67  1,059,436.49  313,117.32 3,745,949.48  3.03                   
2025 2026 3,745,952.51  -                    -                    -                -                    621,653.50     -                621,653.50     3,124,299.01  

 

Mt. Prospect Park District, Cook County, Illinois 
Taxable General Obligation Limited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2023B 
***Final*** 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Levy DSEB Total
10/04/2023 - - - - -
12/15/2024 312,410.00 5.420% 20,272.11 332,682.11 2023 332,682.11

Total $312,410.00 - $20,272.11 $332,682.11 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $374.02
Average Life 1.197 Years
Average Coupon 5.4199996%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 5.4199996%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 5.3209550%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 5.3209550%
 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 5.4199996%
Weighted Average Maturity 1.197 Years

*Priced at 5.42% per the one year treasury rate as of 9/13/2023.

Page 29 



17Speer Financial, Inc.

DSEB
Levy Bond Series Series Series Series Series Series Margin
Year Year DSEB 2022B 2023A 2023B 2024A 2024B* 2024C* Total
2023 2024 3,622,778.06  1,294,563.94  1,995,531.85  332,682.11 -                    -                    -                3,622,777.90  0.16                   
2024 2025 3,745,952.51  -                    -                    -                2,373,395.67  1,059,436.49  313,117.32 3,745,949.48  3.03                   
2025 2026 3,745,952.51  -                    -                    -                -                    621,653.50     -                621,653.50     3,124,299.01  

 

Mt. Prospect Park District, Cook County, Illinois 
General Obligation Limited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2023A 
Dated: October 4, 2023 | ***Final*** 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Levy DSEB Total
10/04/2023 - - - - -
12/15/2024 1,888,370.00 4.740% 107,161.85 1,995,531.85 2023 1,995,531.85

Total $1,888,370.00 - $107,161.85 $1,995,531.85 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $2,260.80
Average Life 1.197 Years
Average Coupon 4.7400000%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 4.7400000%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 4.6639373%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 4.6639373%
 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 4.7400000%
Weighted Average Maturity 1.197 Years

Page 30 



18

18Speer Financial, Inc.

DSEB
Levy Bond Series Series Series Series Series Series Margin
Year Year DSEB 2022B 2023A 2023B 2024A 2024B* 2024C* Total
2023 2024 3,622,778.06  1,294,563.94  1,995,531.85  332,682.11 -                    -                    -                3,622,777.90  0.16                   
2024 2025 3,745,952.51  -                    -                    -                2,373,395.67  1,059,436.49  313,117.32 3,745,949.48  3.03                   
2025 2026 3,745,952.51  -                    -                    -                -                    621,653.50     -                621,653.50     3,124,299.01  

 

Mt. Prospect Park District, Cook County, Illinois 
General Obligation Limited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2022B 
Dated: October 31, 2022 
***Final*** 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Levy DSEB Total

10/31/2022 - - - - -
06/15/2023 - - 32,980.94 32,980.94 -
12/15/2023 273,860.00 3.460% 26,384.75 300,244.75 2022 333,225.69
06/15/2024 - - 21,646.97 21,646.97 -
12/15/2024 1,251,270.00 3.460% 21,646.97 1,272,916.97 2023 1,294,563.94

Total $1,525,130.00 - $102,659.63 $1,627,789.63 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $2,967.04
Average Life 1.945 Years
Average Coupon 3.4600001%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 3.4600001%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 3.4575561%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 3.4575561%
 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 3.4600001%
Weighted Average Maturity 1.945 Years

Page 31 



Outstanding Alternate Revenue Source Bonds
and Debt Certificates

Speer Financial, Inc.
Page 32 



20

20Speer Financial, Inc.

 

Mt. Prospect Park District, Cook County, Illinois 
General Obligation Park Bonds (ARS), Series 2022A 
Dated: May 4, 2022 
***FINAL*** 
Cal lable:  November 1, 2031
Rating:  S&P…AA+/Stable
Purpose:  $8.55M Genera l  Capi ta l

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I

05/04/2022 - - - - -
11/01/2022 - - 160,593.70 160,593.70 -
05/01/2023 - - 163,315.63 163,315.63 323,909.33
11/01/2023 - - 163,315.63 163,315.63 -
05/01/2024 - - 163,315.63 163,315.63 326,631.26
11/01/2024 115,000.00 5.000% 163,315.63 278,315.63 -
05/01/2025 - - 160,440.63 160,440.63 438,756.26
11/01/2025 - - 160,440.63 160,440.63 -
05/01/2026 - - 160,440.63 160,440.63 320,881.26
11/01/2026 - - 160,440.63 160,440.63 -
05/01/2027 - - 160,440.63 160,440.63 320,881.26
11/01/2027 - - 160,440.63 160,440.63 -
05/01/2028 - - 160,440.63 160,440.63 320,881.26
11/01/2028 120,000.00 5.000% 160,440.63 280,440.63 -
05/01/2029 - - 157,440.63 157,440.63 437,881.26
11/01/2029 160,000.00 5.000% 157,440.63 317,440.63 -
05/01/2030 - - 153,440.63 153,440.63 470,881.26
11/01/2030 560,000.00 5.000% 153,440.63 713,440.63 -
05/01/2031 - - 139,440.63 139,440.63 852,881.26
11/01/2031 600,000.00 5.000% 139,440.63 739,440.63 -
05/01/2032 - - 124,440.63 124,440.63 863,881.26
11/01/2032 565,000.00 4.000% 124,440.63 689,440.63 -
05/01/2033 - - 113,140.63 113,140.63 802,581.26
11/01/2033 585,000.00 3.000% 113,140.63 698,140.63 -
05/01/2034 - - 104,365.63 104,365.63 802,506.26
11/01/2034 605,000.00 3.250% 104,365.63 709,365.63 -
05/01/2035 - - 94,534.38 94,534.38 803,900.01
11/01/2035 625,000.00 3.375% 94,534.38 719,534.38 -
05/01/2036 - - 83,987.50 83,987.50 803,521.88
11/01/2036 645,000.00 3.500% 83,987.50 728,987.50 -
05/01/2037 - - 72,700.00 72,700.00 801,687.50
11/01/2037 670,000.00 4.000% 72,700.00 742,700.00 -
05/01/2038 - - 59,300.00 59,300.00 802,000.00
11/01/2038 700,000.00 4.000% 59,300.00 759,300.00 -
05/01/2039 - - 45,300.00 45,300.00 804,600.00
11/01/2039 725,000.00 4.000% 45,300.00 770,300.00 -
05/01/2040 - - 30,800.00 30,800.00 801,100.00
11/01/2040 755,000.00 4.000% 30,800.00 785,800.00 -
05/01/2041 - - 15,700.00 15,700.00 801,500.00
11/01/2041 785,000.00 4.000% 15,700.00 800,700.00 -
05/01/2042 - - - - 800,700.00

Total $8,215,000.00 - $4,486,562.58 $12,701,562.58 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $114,569.04
Average Life 13.946 Years
Average Coupon 3.9160340%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 3.7306571%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 3.6793867%

Bond Year 
Total

Page 33 



21

21Speer Financial, Inc.

Mt. Prospect Park District, Cook County, Illinois 
General Obligation Refunding Park Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2019C
***FINAL*** 
Ca l labl e:  NA
Rating:  S&P…AA+/Stable
Purpose:  Currently refund the GO Park Bonds (ARS), Series  2011B

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I
10/09/2019 - - - - -
11/01/2020 500,000.00 1.270% 44,740.16 544,740.16 -
05/01/2021 - - 17,906.75 17,906.75 562,646.91
11/01/2021 505,000.00 1.300% 17,906.75 522,906.75 -
05/01/2022 - - 14,624.25 14,624.25 537,531.00
11/01/2022 505,000.00 1.350% 14,624.25 519,624.25 -
05/01/2023 - - 11,215.50 11,215.50 530,839.75
11/01/2023 510,000.00 1.400% 11,215.50 521,215.50 -
05/01/2024 - - 7,645.50 7,645.50 528,861.00
11/01/2024 515,000.00 1.440% 7,645.50 522,645.50 -
05/01/2025 - - 3,937.50 3,937.50 526,583.00
11/01/2025 525,000.00 1.500% 3,937.50 528,937.50 -
05/01/2026 - - - - 528,937.50

Total $3,060,000.00 - $155,399.16 $3,215,399.16 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $10,977.00
Average Life 3.587 Years
Average Coupon 1.4156797%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.4156797%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.4132833%

Bond Year 
Total

Page 34 



22

22Speer Financial, Inc.

 

Mt. Prospect Park District, Cook County, Illinois 
General Obligation Park (Alternate Revenue Source) Bonds, Series 2014A 
***Final*** 

Ca l lable:  November 1, 2022
Rating:  S&P…AA+/Stable
Purpose:  Improvements  to the Mt. Prospect Gol f Club gol f course and improvements  to exi sting pl aygrounds

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I
07/01/2014 - - - - -
05/01/2015 - - 236,380.21 236,380.21 236,380.21
11/01/2015 - - 141,828.13 141,828.13 -
05/01/2016 - - 141,828.13 141,828.13 283,656.26
11/01/2016 - - 141,828.13 141,828.13 -
05/01/2017 - - 141,828.13 141,828.13 283,656.26
11/01/2017 - - 141,828.13 141,828.13 -
05/01/2018 - - 141,828.13 141,828.13 283,656.26
11/01/2018 145,000.00 2.000% 141,828.13 286,828.13 -
05/01/2019 - - 140,378.13 140,378.13 427,206.26
11/01/2019 140,000.00 2.000% 140,378.13 280,378.13 -
05/01/2020 - - 138,978.13 138,978.13 419,356.26
11/01/2020 140,000.00 2.250% 138,978.13 278,978.13 -
05/01/2021 - - 137,403.13 137,403.13 416,381.26
11/01/2021 315,000.00 2.500% 137,403.13 452,403.13 -
05/01/2022 - - 133,465.63 133,465.63 585,868.76
11/01/2022 - - 133,465.63 133,465.63 -
05/01/2023 - - 133,465.63 133,465.63 266,931.26
11/01/2023 115,000.00 3.250% 133,465.63 248,465.63 -
05/01/2024 - - 131,596.88 131,596.88 380,062.51
11/01/2024 500,000.00 3.250% 131,596.88 631,596.88 -
05/01/2025 - - 123,471.88 123,471.88 755,068.76
11/01/2025 505,000.00 3.250% 123,471.88 628,471.88 -
05/01/2026 - - 115,265.63 115,265.63 743,737.51
11/01/2026 905,000.00 3.500% 115,265.63 1,020,265.63 -
05/01/2027 - - 99,428.13 99,428.13 1,119,693.76
11/01/2027 905,000.00 3.625% 99,428.13 1,004,428.13 -
05/01/2028 - - 83,025.00 83,025.00 1,087,453.13
11/01/2028 890,000.00 3.750% 83,025.00 973,025.00 -
05/01/2029 - - 66,337.50 66,337.50 1,039,362.50
11/01/2029 890,000.00 3.750% 66,337.50 956,337.50 -
05/01/2030 - - 49,650.00 49,650.00 1,005,987.50
11/01/2030 535,000.00 3.750% 49,650.00 584,650.00 -
05/01/2031 - - 39,618.75 39,618.75 624,268.75
11/01/2031 545,000.00 3.750% 39,618.75 584,618.75 -
05/01/2032 - - 29,400.00 29,400.00 614,018.75
11/01/2032 560,000.00 4.000% 29,400.00 589,400.00 -
05/01/2033 - - 18,200.00 18,200.00 607,600.00
11/01/2033 580,000.00 4.000% 18,200.00 598,200.00 -
05/01/2034 - - 6,600.00 6,600.00 604,800.00
11/01/2034 330,000.00 4.000% 6,600.00 336,600.00 -
05/01/2035 - - - - 336,600.00

Total $8,000,000.00 - $4,121,745.96 $12,121,745.96 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $112,541.67
Average Life 14.068 Years
Average Coupon 3.6624177%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 3.7179681%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 3.7144513%

Bond Year 
Total

Page 35 



23

23Speer Financial, Inc.

 

Mt. Prospect Park District, Cook County, Illinois 
Debt Certificates, Series 2014B 
***Final*** 
Callable:  November 1, 2022
Rating:  S&P…AA/Stable
Purpose:  Improvements to the Mt. Prospect Golf Club golf course

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I
07/01/2014 - - - - -
05/01/2015 - - 33,333.33 33,333.33 33,333.33
11/01/2015 - - 20,000.00 20,000.00 -
05/01/2016 - - 20,000.00 20,000.00 40,000.00
11/01/2016 - - 20,000.00 20,000.00 -
05/01/2017 - - 20,000.00 20,000.00 40,000.00
11/01/2017 - - 20,000.00 20,000.00 -
05/01/2018 - - 20,000.00 20,000.00 40,000.00
11/01/2018 90,000.00 4.000% 20,000.00 110,000.00 -
05/01/2019 - - 18,200.00 18,200.00 128,200.00
11/01/2019 95,000.00 4.000% 18,200.00 113,200.00 -
05/01/2020 - - 16,300.00 16,300.00 129,500.00
11/01/2020 95,000.00 4.000% 16,300.00 111,300.00 -
05/01/2021 - - 14,400.00 14,400.00 125,700.00
11/01/2021 95,000.00 4.000% 14,400.00 109,400.00 -
05/01/2022 - - 12,500.00 12,500.00 121,900.00
11/01/2022 100,000.00 4.000% 12,500.00 112,500.00 -
05/01/2023 - - 10,500.00 10,500.00 123,000.00
11/01/2023 100,000.00 4.000% 10,500.00 110,500.00 -
05/01/2024 - - 8,500.00 8,500.00 119,000.00
11/01/2024 100,000.00 4.000% 8,500.00 108,500.00 -
05/01/2025 - - 6,500.00 6,500.00 115,000.00
11/01/2025 105,000.00 4.000% 6,500.00 111,500.00 -
05/01/2026 - - 4,400.00 4,400.00 115,900.00
11/01/2026 110,000.00 4.000% 4,400.00 114,400.00 -
05/01/2027 - - 2,200.00 2,200.00 116,600.00
11/01/2027 110,000.00 4.000% 2,200.00 112,200.00 -
05/01/2028 - - - - 112,200.00

Total $1,000,000.00 - $360,333.33 $1,360,333.33 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $9,008.33
Average Life 9.008 Years
Average Coupon 4.0000000%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 3.8294706%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 3.7913730%

Bond Year 
Total

Page 36 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING CONCERNING THE INTENT OF THE BOARD OF PARK 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE MT. PROSPECT PARK DISTRICT, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS TO 
SELL NOT TO EXCEED $2,000,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION LIMITED TAX PARK BONDS 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Mt. Prospect Park District, Cook County, 
Illinois (the “District”), will hold a public hearing on the 21st day of August, 2024, 
at 6:30 o’clock P.M.  The hearing will be held at the Central Community Center, 
1000 West Central Road, Mount Prospect, Illinois.  The purpose of the hearing 
will be to receive public comments on the proposal to sell not to exceed 
$2,000,000 General Obligation Limited Tax Park Bonds, the proceeds of which 
will be used to provide for the payment of certain outstanding obligations of the 
District and for the payment of expenses incident thereto.  

  By order of the President of the Board of Park Commissioners of the Mt. 
Prospect Park District, Cook County, Illinois. 

DATED the 19th day of June, 2024. 
 
/s/ William J. Starr   
 Secretary 

        Board of Park Commissioners 
        Mt. Prospect Park District 
        Cook County, Illinois   

Page 37 



To: Board of Park Commissioners

From: George Giese, Director of Administration

CC: Jim Jarog, Executive Director

Date: August 21, 2024

Re: Adoption Item - Approval of Member District Annual Assessment for 2025

Summary and Background:
Each year, the NWSRA Board establishes assessments for its member districts. Each individual
park board must ratify its assessment via adoption of a resolution. Funding for the Park
District’s annual assessment comes from the District’s Special Recreation Fund. Member
District Annual Assessments (MDAAs) factor in EAV (70%), gross population (20%), and
inclusion services as a function of actual usage in the prior year (10%).

NWSRA updates the data annually for each member district, and utilizes ceiling/floor controls
(2%) to govern the overall assessment year to year. The NWSRA Board opted for a one-time
2.5% increase in the 2025 MDAA - defined as a 2% increase and an extra .5% special
assessment - in order to account for inflationary pressures and rising costs, including paid
leave legislation impacting the agency. A multi-year history of rate changes for NWSRA’s total
MDAA is included below:

MDAA Year Percentage Increase +(-)

2015 -2%

2016 1%

2017 -1%

2018 2%

2019 1%

2020 1%

2021 0%

2022 0%

2023 0%

2024 2%

2025 (for approval) 2.5%

Page 38 Page 38



EAV figures from 2022 were used in this year’s calculation per NWSRA’s practice, with the Mt.
Prospect Park District’s EAV at $2,186,488,184 as determined by Cook County. This accounts
for 8.36% of total EAV for all member districts, and is increased from $1,833,646,800 the prior
year. Population remained the same at 56,852 from the 2020 census (8.86% of total
population), and for inclusion services, Mt. Prospect represented 4.12% of the prior year actual
across all members. Reflecting these inputs, as well as those from all NWSRA partners, the
District’s overall assessment increased from $352,343.74 to $363,065.40 (+$10,721.64). This
represents 8% of the total MDAA of $4,516,881.33.

BUDGET IMPACT
Mt. Prospect Park District NWSRA Assessments:

● 2024 Assessment (Current): $352,343.74
● 2025 Assessment (Proposed): $363,065.40 (+$10,721.64)

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED
1) 2025 NWSRA Proposed Member District Annual Assessments
2) Resolution #854

Recommendation:
MOVE TO ADOPT RESOLUTION #854 RATIFYING THE ASSESSMENT FOR CALENDAR YEAR
2025 AS RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE NORTHWEST SPECIAL
RECREATION ASSOCIATION IN THE AMOUNT OF $363,065.40.

Page 39 Page 39



CORRECTED
NORTHWEST SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION

MDAA  2025 AT  2.5%

% 70% % 20% % 10% 2025 %

Member of Total of total Gross of Total of total Services of Total of total MDAA of Total

Park District EAV MDAAA Population Population MDAAA Provided Services MDAA MDAA

Arlington Heights 3,554,732,773 13.60% 429,904.48       74,409              11.59% 104,724.86       63,541.05         9.49% 42,843.24                 577,472.58               12.8%

Bartlett 1,543,718,470 5.90% 186,695.18       41,020              6.39% 57,732.45         20,097.13         3.00% 13,550.71                 257,978.34               5.7%

Buffalo Grove 1,972,578,496 7.55% 238,560.92       41,554              6.47% 58,484.01         81,693.63         12.19% 55,082.81                 352,127.75               7.8%

Elk Grove 2,217,101,096 8.48% 268,133.15       31,127              4.85% 43,808.82         24,488.98         3.66% 16,511.96                 328,453.93               7.3%

Hanover Park 728,196,297 2.79% 88,067.06         35,402              5.52% 49,825.55         11,793.47         1.76% 7,951.88                   145,844.48               3.2%

Hoffman Estates 1,957,579,994 7.49% 236,747.03       50,139              7.81% 70,566.73         49,554.87         7.40% 33,412.90                 340,726.66               7.5%

Inverness 233,631,488 0.89% 28,255.07         4,060                0.63% 5,714.13           2,252.50           0.34% 1,518.77                   35,487.97                 0.8%

Mt. Prospect 2,186,488,184 8.36% 264,430.87       56,852              8.86% 80,014.75         27,615.10         4.12% 18,619.78                 363,065.40               8.0%

Palatine 2,711,911,750 10.37% 327,974.87       83,000              12.93% 116,816.02       56,130.67         8.38% 37,846.71                 482,637.60               10.7%

Prospect Heights 426,754,760 1.63% 51,611.13         15,000              2.34% 21,111.33         9,762.00           1.46% 6,582.13                   79,304.59                 1.8%

River Trails 614,364,785 2.35% 74,300.43         17,000              2.65% 23,926.17         18,519.07         2.76% 12,486.68                 110,713.28               2.5%

Rolling Meadows 813,316,095 3.11% 98,361.33         24,099              3.75% 33,917.46         64,433.32         9.62% 43,444.86                 175,723.65               3.9%

Salt Creek 251,291,867 0.96% 30,390.89         6,306                0.98% 8,875.20           3,415.82           0.51% 2,303.16                   41,569.25                 0.9%

Schaumburg 4,208,467,824 16.10% 508,966.30       76,225              11.88% 107,280.73       132,202.57       19.73% 89,139.01                 705,386.04               15.6%

South Barrington 494,823,917 1.89% 59,843.32         5,077                0.79% 7,145.48           6,249.17           0.93% 4,213.57                   71,202.37                 1.6%

Streamwood 952,018,414 3.64% 115,135.79       36,859              5.74% 51,876.16         16,704.37         2.49% 11,263.10                 178,275.06               3.9%

Wheeling 1,277,004,003 4.88% 154,439.10       43,737              6.81% 61,556.41         81,447.51         12.16% 54,916.86                 270,912.38               6.0%

          Total 26,143,980,213       100% 3,161,816.93    641,866            100% 903,376.27       669,901.23       100.00% 451,688.13               4,516,881.33            100.0%

*The 2022 EAV is the most current available.
Previous year MDAA 4,406,713.50           2.50% 110,167.84       4,516,881.33            

Change in value TOTAL 4,516,881.33            
The computations are completed using the 70% EAV, 20% Population and 10% Services for each Park District's individual contribution, 
with a 2% floor/ceiling for the total MDAA contribution.

2025 4,516,881.33            
2024 (4,406,713.50)           

Increase 110,167.84               

 2022 E.A.V. used 
for 2025 MDAA 

Corrected on 8/21/24
Page 40 Page 40



CORRECTED
NWSRA MEMBER DISTRICTS

2022 - 2025
 REPORTED POPULATION COMPARISON
Gross Gross Gross Gross Increase %

Member Park District Population Population Population Population (Decrease) Increase
2022 2023 2024 2025 in Population (Decrease)

Arlington Heights 75,101       74,409       74,409       74,409       -                 0.0%

Bartlett 41,208       41,105       41,020       41,020       -                 0.0%

Buffalo Grove 41,554       43,212       41,554       41,554       -                 0.0%

Elk Grove 32,458       32,458       31,127       31,127       -                 0.0%

Hanover Park 38,533       38,533       36,774       36,774       -                 0.0%

Hoffman Estates 51,895       51,895       52,530       50,139       (2,391)            -4.6%

Inverness 4,060         4,060         4,060         4,060         -                 0.0%

Mt. Prospect 54,771       56,852       56,852       56,852       -                 0.0%

Palatine 83,000       83,000       83,000       83,000       -                 0.0%

Prospect Heights 15,000       15,000       15,000       15,000       -                 0.0%

River Trails 17,000       17,000       17,500       17,000       (500)               -2.9%

Rolling Meadows 20,000       23,004       23,004       24,099       1,095              4.8%

Salt Creek 6,300         6,300         6,300         6,306         6                     0.1%

Schaumburg 74,227       78,723       78,723       76,225       (2,498)            -3.2%

South Barrington 5,075         5,075         4,931         5,077         146                 2.9%

Streamwood 40,615       40,615       41,463       41,463       -                 0.0%

Wheeling 42,800       42,800       42,800       42,800       -                 0.0%

          Total 643,597     654,041     651,047     646,905     (4,142)            -0.6%

CORRECTED 8/21/24 Page 41 Page 41



Correction Calculations for FY2025 MDAA

2025 2025
Member MDAA MDAA 

Park District Presented
 Should have been 
presented 

Arlington Heights 589,022.03     577,472.58             11,549.45  

Bartlett 263,137.90     257,978.34             5,159.57    

Buffalo Grove 359,170.30     352,127.75             7,042.55    

Elk Grove 335,023.01     328,453.93             6,569.08    

Hanover Park 148,761.37     145,844.48             2,916.89    

Hoffman Estates 347,541.19     340,726.66             6,814.53    

Inverness 36,197.73       35,487.97               709.76       

Mt. Prospect 370,326.71     363,065.40             7,261.31    

Palatine 492,290.35     482,637.60             9,652.75    

Prospect Heights 80,890.69       79,304.59               1,586.09    

River Trails 112,927.55     110,713.28             2,214.27    

Rolling Meadows 179,238.12     175,723.65             3,514.47    

Salt Creek 42,400.64       41,569.25               831.39       

Schaumburg 719,493.76     705,386.04             14,107.72  

South Barrington 72,626.42       71,202.37               1,424.05    

Streamwood 181,840.56     178,275.06             3,565.50    

Wheeling 276,330.63     270,912.38             5,418.25    

4,607,218.96  4,516,881.34          90,337.63  

FY 2024 Approved 
MDAA Scenario at 2%

Number used to 
calculate the 

incorrect FY2025 
MDAA given

4,406,713.50               88,134.27                       4,494,847.77 

Amount to 
lower 
MDAA 

CORRECTED 8/21/24 Page 42 Page 41A



CORRECTED 
NWSRA MEMBER DISTRICT

MDAA CALCULATIONS
EAV COMPARISON

MEMBER 2019 E.A.V. 2020 E.A.V. 2021 E.A.V. 2022 E.A.V INCREASE %
PARK DISTRICT For 2022 MDAA For 2023 MDAA For 2024 MDAA For 2025 MDAA (DECREASE) Incr/Decr

Arlington Heights 3,226,379,740 3,249,612,320 3,003,056,996 3,554,732,773 (246,555,324) -7.6%
Bartlett 1,218,097,755 1,239,658,745 1,234,948,947 1,543,718,470 (4,709,798) -0.4%
Buffalo Grove 1,790,991,751 1,755,474,844 1,734,125,860 1,972,578,496 (21,348,984) -1.2%
Elk Grove 1,942,415,575 2,030,139,277 1,898,154,520 2,217,101,096 (131,984,757) -6.5%
Hanover Park 638,428,503 649,288,341 639,234,734 728,196,297 (10,053,607) -1.5%
Hoffman Estates 1,622,870,712 1,650,993,361 1,671,290,462 1,957,579,994 20,297,101 1.2%
Inverness 230,224,272 228,391,148 210,141,254 233,631,488 (18,249,894) -8.0%
Mt. Prospect 1,945,499,549 1,975,432,038 1,833,646,800 2,186,488,184 (141,785,238) -7.2%
Palatine 2,472,145,053 2,480,495,752 2,300,586,536 2,711,911,750 (179,909,216) -7.3%
Prospect Heights 386,873,678 386,548,711 353,144,088 426,754,760 (33,404,623) -8.6%
River Trails 559,100,594 581,370,345 536,675,256 614,364,785 (44,695,089) -7.7%
Rolling Meadows 756,326,298 765,286,584 707,242,866 813,316,095 (58,043,718) -7.6%
Salt Creek 205,261,215 204,908,089 189,113,722 251,291,867 (15,794,367) -7.7%
Schaumburg 3,965,450,962 4,036,412,239 3,746,864,525 4,208,467,824 (289,547,714) -7.2%
South Barrington 483,574,401 470,725,032 436,637,673 494,823,917 (34,087,359) -7.2%
Streamwood 814,255,046 807,527,030 739,778,527 952,018,414 (67,748,503) -8.4%
Wheeling 1,184,465,400 1,245,341,720 1,129,225,732 1,277,004,003 (116,115,988) -9.3%
       Total E.A.V. 23,442,360,504 23,757,605,576 22,363,868,498 26,143,980,213 (1,393,737,078) -5.9%

CORRECTED 8/21/24 Page 43 Page 42



CORRECTED 
MEMBER DISTRICT ANNUAL ASSESSMENTS

2022 - 2025
COMPARISON

2022 2023 2023 2024 2024 2025
Member Park District Assessment Assessment Assessment Assessment Assessment Proposed MDAA

Arlington Heights 571,987.59      566,083.43      (5,904.16)         566,083.43      549,152.94          (16,930.49)       549,152.94      577,472.58          28,319.63        
-                        

Bartlett 237,521.67      236,953.83      (567.84)            236,953.83      237,979.44          1,025.61          237,979.44      257,978.34          19,998.90        
-                        

Buffalo Grove 317,288.41      310,783.96      (6,504.45)         310,783.96      345,757.67          34,973.71        345,757.67      352,127.75          6,370.08          
-                        

Elk Grove 322,953.58      330,485.59      7,532.01          330,485.59      320,854.81          (9,630.78)         320,854.81      328,453.93          7,599.12          
-                        

Hanover Park 152,909.96      152,187.56      (722.40)            152,187.56      149,718.43          (2,469.13)         149,718.43      145,844.48          (3,873.95)         
-                        

Hoffman Estates 311,404.66      310,873.06      (531.60)            310,873.06      328,595.99          17,722.93        328,595.99      340,726.66          12,130.67        
-                        

Inverness 38,635.31        37,854.25        (781.06)            37,854.25        37,289.74             (564.51)            37,289.74        35,487.97             (1,801.77)         
-                        

Mt. Prospect 360,825.27      363,308.24      2,482.97          363,308.24      352,343.74          (10,964.50)       352,343.74      363,065.40          10,721.65        
-                        

Palatine 480,992.40      475,372.96      (5,619.44)         475,372.96      474,629.85          (743.11)            474,629.85      482,637.60          8,007.75          
-                        

Prospect Heights 78,646.95        77,491.10        (1,155.85)         77,491.10        87,857.95             10,366.85        87,857.95        79,304.59             (8,553.35)         
-                        

River Trails 105,808.74      107,365.04      1,556.30          107,365.04      106,608.02          (757.02)            106,608.02      110,713.28          4,105.26          
-                        

Rolling Meadows 138,104.07      142,363.78      4,259.71          142,363.78      174,557.98          32,194.20        174,557.98      175,723.65          1,165.67          
-                        

Salt Creek 38,944.03        38,350.57        (593.46)            38,350.57        40,211.12             1,860.55          40,211.12        41,569.25             1,358.13          
-                        

Schaumburg 672,676.14      680,516.87      7,840.73          680,516.87      684,582.23          4,065.36          684,582.23      705,386.04          20,803.81        
-                        

South Barrington 75,357.02        72,581.62        (2,775.40)         72,581.62        72,999.83             418.21             72,999.83        71,202.37             (1,797.46)         
-                        

Streamwood 180,706.90      177,207.46      (3,499.44)         177,207.46      163,278.56          (13,928.90)       163,278.56      178,275.06          14,996.50        
-                        

Wheeling 235,544.65      240,528.03      4,983.38          240,528.03      280,295.19          39,767.16        280,295.19      270,912.38          (9,382.81)         

          Total 4,320,307.35   4,320,307.35   0.00                 4,320,307.35   4,406,713.50       86,406.15        4,406,713.50   4,516,881.33       110,167.84      

Increase 
(Decrease)

Increase 
(Decrease)

Increase 
(Decrease)

CORRECTED 8/21/24 Page 44 Page 43



CORRECTED 
NORTHWEST SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION

2025 SPECIAL RECREATION FUND RECOMMENDATIONS Based on a .04 Levy

Member Park 
District

Property County 
E.A.V.

Handicapped 
Fund .04 Levy per 

$1 EAV
NWSRA MDAA Billed 

Fiscal Year

Balance of 
Handicapped 

Fund

MDAA Space 
Allowance @ .00004 x 
EAV for NWSRA usage

Dollars Available for 
ADA Compliance 

Projects
Each Member 
District that is a 
part of the Special 
Recreation 
Association

This is the funding 
that the County 
Assesors Office 
has allocated for 
each Member 
District, calculated 
from the Equalized 
Assessed 
Valuation of the 
properties.

Each Member 
District is allowed 
to levy $.04 for 
every $100 EAV 
to be used to 
provide programs 
and services and 
accessibility for 
Individuals with 
Disabilities.

As a part of the NWSRA 
Joint Agreement, the 
Member District pay an  
Annual Assessment to 
NWSRA to support 
programs, services, staff, 
transportation, inclusion, 
education, training and 
much more. The MDAA is 
calculated using the 
formula of 70% EAV, 
20% Gross Population 
and 10% Services with a 
2% ceiling and a 2% floor.

This represents 
the remaining 
balance after the 
MDAA for NWSRA 
(column D) is 
subtracted from 
Handicapped Fund 
(column C)

The amount that each 
Member District can 
reimburse itself for the 
use of space by 
NWSRA programs and 
services. This is based 
on a formula used to 
estimate the annual 
costs of usage for 
NWSRA programs and 
services at the 
Member District facility 
spaces. 

This is the remaining 
balance of  each 
Member District's 
Handicapped Fund. 
This balance can be 
used for  Special 
Recreation 
Association 
programs and 
services, inclusion 
support and ADA 
Compliance 
expenses. 

Arlington Heights 3,554,732,773 1,421,893.11       577,472.58                      844,420.53           177,736.64                 666,683.89              
Bartlett 1,543,718,470 617,487.39          257,978.34                      359,509.05           77,185.92                   282,323.13              
Buffalo Grove 1,972,578,496 789,031.40          352,127.75                      436,903.65           98,628.92                   338,274.73              
Elk Grove 2,217,101,096 886,840.44          328,453.93                      558,386.51           110,855.05                 447,531.46              
Hanover Park 728,196,297 291,278.52          145,844.48                      145,434.04           36,409.81                   109,024.23              
Hoffman Estates 1,957,579,994 783,032.00          340,726.66                      442,305.34           97,879.00                   344,426.34              
Inverness 233,631,488 93,452.60            35,487.97                        57,964.63             11,681.57                   46,283.06                
Mt. Prospect 2,186,488,184 874,595.27          363,065.40                      511,529.87           109,324.41                 402,205.46              
Palatine 2,711,911,750 1,084,764.70       482,637.60                      602,127.10           135,595.59                 466,531.51              
Prospect Heights 426,754,760 170,701.90          79,304.59                        91,397.31             21,337.74                   70,059.57                
River Trails 614,364,785 245,745.91          110,713.28                      135,032.63           30,718.24                   104,314.39              
Rolling Meadows 813,316,095 325,326.44          175,723.65                      149,602.79           40,665.80                   108,936.99              
Salt Creek 251,291,867 100,516.75          41,569.25                        58,947.50             12,564.59                   46,382.91                
Schaumburg 4,208,467,824 1,683,387.13       705,386.04                      978,001.09           210,423.39                 767,577.70              
South Barrington 494,823,917 197,929.57          71,202.37                        126,727.20           24,741.20                   101,986.00              
Streamwood 952,018,414 380,807.37          178,275.06                      202,532.31           47,600.92                   154,931.39              
Wheeling 1,277,004,003 510,801.60          270,912.38                      239,889.22           63,850.20                   176,039.02              

Totals 26,143,980,213    10,457,592.10     4,516,881.33$                 5,940,710.77$      1,307,198.99              4,633,511.78           

CORRECTED 8/21/24 Page 45 Page 44



NAYS: ____AYES: _____

ABSENT: _____

Passed and approved this 21st day of August 2024.

_________________________________
President

Attest:

_______________________________
Secretary

RESOLUTION NO. 854

MT. PROSPECT PARK DISTRICT

NWSRA ASSESSMENT – CALENDAR YEAR 2025

WHEREAS, the Mt. Prospect Park District is a member district in good standing with the 
Northwest Special Recreation Association (“NWSRA”), and,

WHEREAS, the Northwest Special Recreation Association represents a joint agreement program
as authorized in the Park District Code, and,

WHEREAS, the Mt. Prospect Park District has the authority pursuant to Section 5.8 of the Park 
District Code, and,

WHEREAS, the Mt. Prospect Park District is committed to ensuring the continuation of quality 
leisure services for its residents, both children and adults, experiencing a disabling condition,
and,

WHEREAS, the Mt. Prospect Park District wants to continue to support full community 
participation by residents with disabling conditions,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Mt. Prospect Park District does hereby ratify the 
recommended assessment for calendar year 2025 in the amount of $363,065.40 as recommended
by the Board of Trustees of NWSRA.

Page 46 



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS.

COUNTY OF COOK )

I, WILLIAM STARR, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I am the duly elected, qualified and
acting Secretary of the Mt. Prospect Park District and of the Board of Commissioners of the Mt.
Prospect Park District and that I have access to and am custodian of the official Minutes of the
Meetings of the Board of Commissioners of the Mt. Prospect Park District.

I DO FURTHER CERTIFY that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy
(duplicate) of a certain Resolution entitled:

RESOLUTION NO. 854

MT. PROSPECT PARK DISTRICT

NWSRA ASSESSMENT FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2025

that the foregoing was passed by the Board of Commissioners of said Mt. Prospect Park District
on the 21st day of August, 2024 and was on the same day approved by the Secretary of the Mt.
Prospect Park District; that it was filed and recorded in the office of the Secretary of the Mt.
Prospect Park District of which the foregoing is a true copy (duplicate) and that the original of
said Resolution is now on file in the office of such Secretary.

GIVEN under my hand and seal of the Mt. Prospect Park District this 21st day of August, 2024.

_____________________________________
William J. Starr, Secretary
Mt. Prospect Park District
Cook County, Illinois

(SEAL)

Page 47 



To: Board of Park Commissioners

From: George Giese, Director of Administration

Lee Howard, CPA, Governmental Accounting, Inc.

CC: Jim Jarog, Executive Director

Tom Hoffman, Park District Attorney

Date: August 21, 2024

Re: Adoption Item - Wintrust Bank - A Resolution #855 Designating Public Depository and

Authorizing Withdrawal of Public Moneys

Summary and Background:
The Park District has made recent efforts to optimize its financial and banking operations,
including a change in merchant services as well as a new vendor for District P-Cards. At the
August meeting, staff will be proposing the approval of two new banking institutions in order to
maximize operational and investment opportunities.

One of the two institutions under consideration is Wintrust, a bank with strong roots in the
Chicagoland area as well as local branches in town. There are 15 charters within the Wintrust
network, providing FDIC insurance coverage for deposits across those charters, and collateral
arrangements for amounts beyond that. Wintrust’s investment options include the ability to
assist the Park District in procuring Treasury Bills, which is an important service that not every
bank is able to offer. Wintrust also provides comparable operational account options as similar
banks, with particular emphasis on the MaxSafe MMA that offers strong earnings potential and
FDIC insurance of up to $3.75 million per titled account.

As part of the account opening process, Wintrust requires a Board-adopted resolution. If so
adopted, staff would look to submit the required documentation and begin transitioning
services and funds for investment.

Documents Attached:
● Collateralized Deposit Agreement
● Pledged Depository Agreement
● Custodial Agreement - MaxSafe Deposit Account Program
● Wintrust Community Banks - Privacy Disclosure
● Resolution #855 (including Exhibit A)

Recommendation:
MOVE TO ADOPT RESOLUTION #855 - A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING PUBLIC
DEPOSITORY AND AUTHORIZING WITHDRAWAL OF PUBLIC MONEYS

Page 48 



Page 49 



Page 50 



Page 51 



Page 52 



Page 53 



Page 54 



 To:  Board of Park Commissioners 

 From:  George Giese, Director of Administration 

 Lee Howard, CPA, Governmental Accounting, Inc. 

 CC:  Jim Jarog, Executive Director 

 Tom Hoffman, Park District Attorney 

 Date:  August 21, 2024 

 Re:  Adoption Item - Lakeside Bank - Resolution #856 - A Resolution Approving a Business 

 Deposit Account Agreement and a Custodial Agreement with Lakeside Bank and 

 Approving and Authorizing Execution and Delivery of an ICS Deposit Placement 

 Agreement with IntraFi Network LLC 

 Summary and Background: 
 The Park District has made recent efforts to optimize its financial and banking operations, 
 including a change in merchant services as well as a new vendor for District P-Cards. At the 
 August meeting, staff will be proposing the approval of two new banking institutions in order to 
 maximize operational and investment opportunities. 

 One of the two proposed institutions is Lakeside Bank, which is opening up a new location in 
 Mount Prospect. Like all banks, Lakeside provides checking and money market accounts - but 
 their institution is also a partner of the IntraFi network, which includes 3,000 financial 
 institutions nationwide. From the Park District’s perspective, this partnership provides very 
 secure protection for deposits and investments with FDIC insurance. In effect, the Park 
 District’s account balances are spread across the network’s banks to ensure no individual 
 “account” surpasses the $250,000 FDIC threshold. Unlike collateral arrangements with 
 changing valuations and other variables, the FDIC arrangement through IntraFi provides strong 
 protection with concise reporting and coverage across a large network of banks. Additional 
 highlights include: 

 ●  The network can support up to $250 million per client. 
 ●  An operating account can be set to automatically sweep funds that would otherwise 

 surpass the $250,000 threshold. 
 ●  Bank of New York Mellon serves as the custodial bank for the network. 
 ●  Deposits are direct obligations of the banks providing the coverage. Should a bank fail 

 and not be taken on by another, financially-healthy institution, BNY Mellon files a claim 
 on behalf of depositors to recuperate account balances via FDIC coverage. 

Page 55 



 ●  In addition to their ICS (IntraFi Cash Service) accounts described above, the network 
 also provides a similarly-protected option for certificates of deposit, or CDs. This 
 program is called CDARS, and like the operational accounts, CDARS would allow the 
 Park District access to millions in aggregate FDIC insurance across network banks for 
 CDs. 

 Staff and Attorney Hoffman have prepared Resolution #856 for Park Board consideration. Two 
 agreements, in addition, have been included for additional support - including the ICS Deposit 
 Placement Agreement and Business Deposit Account Agreement for Lakeside Bank. 

 If so adopted, staff would look to submit the required documentation and begin transitioning 
 services and funds for investment. 

 Documents Attached: 
 ●  ICS Deposit Placement Agreement and Custodial Agreement 
 ●  Business Deposit Account Agreement 
 ●  Resolution #856 

 Recommendation: 
 MOVE TO ADOPT RESOLUTION #856 - A RESOLUTION APPROVING A BUSINESS 
 DEPOSIT ACCOUNT AGREEMENT AND A CUSTODIAL AGREEMENT WITH LAKESIDE 
 BANK AND APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN ICS 
 DEPOSIT PLACEMENT AGREEMENT WITH IntraFi Network LLC. 

Page 56 



Page 57 



Page 58 



Page 59 



Page 60 



Page 61 



Page 62 



Page 63 



Page 64 



Page 65 



Page 66 



Page 67 



Page 68 



Page 69 



Page 70 



Page 71 



Page 72 



Page 73 



Page 74 



Page 75 



Page 76 



Page 77 



Page 78 



Page 79 



Page 80 



Page 81 



Page 82 



Page 83 



Page 84 



Page 85 



Page 86 



Page 87 



Page 88 



Page 89 



Page 90 



Page 91 



Page 92 



Page 93 



Page 94 



Page 95 



RESOLUTION NO. 856 
 

MT. PROSPECT PARK DISTRICT 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A BUSINESS DEPOSIT ACCOUNT 
AGREEMENT AND A CUSTODIAL AGREEMENT WITH 

LAKESIDE BANK AND APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN ICS DEPOSIT PLACEMENT 

AGREEMENT WITH IntraFi Network LLC 
 

WHEREAS, the Mt. Prospect Park District (”District”) has reviewed its 

depositories and has concluded that it will make certain changes to better 

facilitate its financial and investment transactions, goals, and objectives. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of 

Mt. Prospect Park District, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1.  That the Agreements referred to in the title hereof, copies of 

which have been reviewed and are set forth on Exhibits A and B hereto, 

respectively (and which are hereby incorporated herein) are hereby approved and 

and that the signatories  to be designated by the Executive Director and approved 

by the Park District Attorney are authorized and directed to execute and to 

deliver same to the other party/ies thereto, such execution and delivery to be at 

such time as the Treasurer and Executive Director shall in their discretion deem 

appropriate. 

Section 2. Such existing financial and/or investment accounts of the 

District as may be appropriate to terminate (in the discretion of the Treasurer 

and Executive Director) shall be so terminated at such time as the Executive 

Director shall determine to be appropriate, consistent with the intent of this 

resolution to make certain changes to better facilitate the District’s financial and 

Page 96 



investment transactions, goals, and objectives. 

 

Section 3. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect after its adoption. 

AYE:  ______________________________________________________ 

NAY:            

ABSENT:           

Adopted this 21st day of August, 2024. 

 
        
President, Board of Commissioners 
Mt. Prospect Park District 
Cook County, Illinois 

ATTEST: 
 
      
Secretary, Board of Commissioners 
Mt. Prospect Park District 
Cook County, Illinois 
 
  

Page 97 



  STATE OF ILLINOIS   ) 
      ) SS. 
COUNTY OF COOK   ) 
 
 I, WILLIAM J. STARR, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I am the duly elected, 

qualified and acting Secretary of the Mt. Prospect Park District and of the Board 
of Park Commissioners of the Mt. Prospect Park District; and that I have access 
to and am custodian of the official Minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Park 
Commissioners and of the Mt. Prospect Park District. 
 
 I DO FURTHER CERTIFY that the above and foregoing is a true and correct 

copy (duplicate) of a certain resolution entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 856  
 

MT. PROSPECT PARK DISTRICT 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A BUSINESS DEPOSIT ACCOUNT 
AGREEMENT AND A CUSTODIAL AGREEMENT WITH 

LAKESIDE BANK AND APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN ICS DEPOSIT PLACEMENT 

AGREEMENT WITH IntraFi Network LLC 
 

That the foregoing was adopted by the Board of Park Commissioners of 
said Mt. Prospect Park District on the 21st day of August, 2024, and was on the 
same day approved by the Secretary of the Mt. Prospect Park District of which 
the foregoing is a true copy (duplicate) and is now on file in the office of such 
Secretary. 
 
 GIVEN under my hand and seal of the Mt. Prospect Park District this 21st 

day of August, 2024. 
 
 
 
 
             

    ____________________________________ 
       Secretary 
       Mt. Prospect Park District 
       Cook County, Illinois 
 
(SEAL) 
 

 
 
 

Page 98 



August 21, 2024 

August 21, 2024 
 

 
FINANCIAL ADVISORS REPORT – July 2024 
 
Property Tax Collections 
A return to a normal timing historically, for billing and collections with 2,936,918 of the second 
installment being received in the last half of July. This compares with November/December last 
year. 
 
Banking Recommendations 
After an evaluation of current local banking options including, investment income, ability to 
provide collateral on funds over the federally insured limit, and the ability to bid competitively on 
the Districts annual bond issue, staff has agreed on the recommendation of two additional 
financial institutions for Board approval. Lakeside Bank, and Village Bank & Trust with Wintrust 
Treasury Management (a brokerage account) for treasury securities. A separate report is 
provided. 
 
Golf Report 
YTD revenue is $1,527,802, up 7% over last July. Expenditures are $1,114,634, an increase of 
9%. Net through July is $413,168 up $17,779 from last year. Increases in part-time hourly 
wages and new contractual charges are continuing cost factors this year. 
 
Rec Programs 
Rec program revenues through July are $1,731,466 and up $178,512 or 11% from last year. 
 
Childcare Programs 
Revenues for Childcare programs through July are $864,986 and up 13% overall from last year. 
Kids Klub (up 9%) and Preschool (up 39%). Day Camp registration (up 8%). Although 
registrations are always minimal during the summer, refunds for Camps were high last month in 
June.  
 
Recplex Facility Report 
Recplex facility YTD revenue through July is $324,325 and up $33,323 or 11% from last year. 
  
Pools Report 

Page 99 



 
 
August 21, 2024 
 

All three pool revenues through July of $571,661 are up $64,521 from last year. YTD net cost of 
operations is $50,953 
 
Central Programs 
Central program revenues through June are $201,879 and up $18,940 from last year. 

 
Central Facility Report 
Central facility overall revenues through July are $261,528 (including Turf revenue of $91,619). 
Facility overall revenues are up $24,947 or 11% from last year. Turf accounted for $5,322 of the 
increase through July. 

 

 
 
 

 

Page 100 



Page 101 



Page 102 



2022 2023 2024 2024 % Change % Change
ACCOUNT NAMES Actual Actual Actual Budget from 23 from 22

Operating
BALANCE, Beginning - January 1 11,670,630 20,399,494 21,095,287 +Capital

REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES 5,925,942 5,565,751 9,283,826 12,297,309 67% 57%
REPLACEMENT TAXES 415,166 372,888 215,792 505,000 -42% -48%
RENTAL 484,767 606,135 670,018 914,742 11% 38%
PASSES /USER FEES 556,967 682,251 716,725 855,311 5% 29%
DAILY /USER FEES 862,841 993,683 1,077,133 1,506,642 8% 25%
PROGRAM FEES 1,720,765 2,141,690 2,323,847 3,505,426 9% 35%
CONCESSION SALES 54,872 76,669 66,223 102,188 -14% 21%
CORP SPONSORS & GRANTS 21,769 54,594 190,750 21,000 249% 776%
OTHER 44,507 44,937 247,155 60,174 450% 455%
INTEREST 2,419 95,458 222,815 22,071 133% 9111%
INT PROJ CHARGES 310,000 100,000 0 100,000 n/a n/a
BRENTWOOD PROP SALE 0 0 795,000 n/a n/a
BOND PROCEEDS - New Capital 8,427,385 0 0 0 n/a n/a
BOND PROCEEDS - REFI Rate 0 0 0 n/a n/a
BOND PROCEEDS - REFI Annual 0 0 2,169,120 1,852,116 n/a n/a

TOTAL REVENUE 18,827,400    10,734,056    17,978,404    21,741,979    67% -5%
without bonds 10,734,056    17,978,404    67% -5%

EXPENDITURES:
FULL TIME SALARIES 2,139,321 2,266,499 2,436,395 4,463,797 7% 14%
PART TIME SALARIES 1,131,842 1,302,442 1,514,970 3,004,788 16% 34%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 946,496 917,321 999,150 1,600,700 9% 6%
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 541,006 699,445 821,849 1,723,482 18% 52%
COMMODITIES 562,399 625,292 682,166 1,332,519 9% 21%
CONCESSIONS 36,642 63,045 59,145 68,177 -6% 61%
UTILITIES 377,166 360,896 333,438 874,783 -8% -12%
INSURANCE 216,775 433,152 110,274 892,500 n/a n/a
NW SPECIAL REC 288,307 363,308 352,344 444,026 -3% 22%
RETIREMENT 643,931 608,894 469,288 977,816 -23% -27%
SALES TAX 4,089              7,119              4,905              5,200 -31% 20%
DEBT SERVICE:
BONDS - Short Term 17,184            37,549            -                   3,622,773 n/a n/a
BONDS - LONG TERM 160,590          318,497          332,705          1,852,116 4% 107%
BONDS - CALLED -                   -                   0                      n/a n/a
CAPITAL PROJECTS:
FROM BOND FUNDS - New Capital 93,045            -                   -                   -                   n/a n/a
FROM BOND FUNDS - Carryover 745,570          773,131          2,755,100      -                   256% 270%

74 NON RECURRING PROJECTS 2,138,220      
ACCESSIBILITY - ADA 19,490            366,778          451,389          762,930 23% 2216%
GOV DEALS -                   26,444            5,978              44,000 -77% n/a
CONSERVATORY -                   42,748            -                   0 n/a n/a
PAV & LIGHT FUND 28,015            67,622            70,320            209,994 4% 151%

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 7,951,868      9,280,182      13,537,636    21,879,601    46% 70%

REVENUE OVER(UNDER) 10,875,532    1,453,874      4,440,768      (137,622)        

BALANCE, Ending 22,546,162    21,853,368    25,536,055    

MOUNT PROSPECT PARK DISTRICT
YTD SUMMARY - ALL FUNDS

For Seven Months Ended 7/31/24

Page 103 



58% OF  CALENDAR  YEAR

FUND / Department  '24 Y.T.D. 2024 Y.T.D. as %  '23 Y.T.D. Y.T.D. % of Projected Proj % of % Inc '24 Bud
Actual Budget  of '24 Budget Actual  '23 Y.T.D. 2024  '24 Bud Over '23 Bud

GENERAL  FUND
     Administration 532,206               1,065,445            50% 499,353               107% 943,291               89% 8%
     Maintenance 685,419               1,335,467            51% 653,537               105% 1,249,154            94% 1%
     Motor Pool 141,168               265,808               53% 129,433               109% 250,883               94% 3%
     Buildings 221,908               398,411               56% 146,327               152% 364,656               92% 45%
     Studio at Melas 10,633                 28,025                 38% 9,375                   113% 18,059                 64% 3%

Total 1,591,335            3,093,156            51% 1,438,025            111% 2,832,099            92% 8%

RECREATION  FUND
     Administration 717,847               1,279,579            56% 637,231               113% 1,161,984            91% 2%
     Big Surf 134,714               252,669               53% 126,004               107% 208,328               82% 3%
     Meadows Pool 180,846               364,683               50% 152,398               119% 329,435               90% 4%
     Recplex Pool 307,034               578,477               53% 253,946               121% 524,369               91% 8%
     Golf Course  1,114,634            1,877,850            59% 1,046,828            106% 1,800,507            96% 2%
     Concessions 5,933                   10,480                 57% 5,982                   99% 8,698                   83% -11%
     Lions Center 118,990               279,361               43% 103,612               115% 248,266               89% 22%
     Recplex Center 550,822               1,251,846            44% 548,720               100% 1,027,625            82% 9%
     Rec Programs 856,036               1,700,832            50% 818,779               105% 1,533,340            90% 13%
     Central Programs 106,815               217,861               49% 81,743                 131% 254,706               117% 68%
     Central Road 396,238               742,138               53% 342,648               116% 689,033               93% 13%

Total 4,489,911            8,555,776            52% 4,117,891            109% 7,753,345            91% 8%

MT PROSPECT PARK DISTRICT
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURE ANALYSIS

FOR THE 7 MONTHS ENDED 7-31-24

Page 104 



 
58.3% of Calendar Year

 YTD % of Annual % of
Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual LastYr Last Yr Budget Budget

REVENUES:
   RENTALS 133,411    175,439     70,400     68,180     203,811    243,619    238,911    102% 371,500     66%
   PASSES /USER FEES 235,232    237,224     150          700          235,382    237,924    240,296    99% 235,990     101%
   DAILY /USER FEES 495,356    663,163     214,201   254,715   709,557    917,878    842,366    109% 1,290,575  71%
   PROGRAM FEES 53,407      68,753       2,674       8,725       56,081      77,478      73,411      106% 72,500       107%
   MERCHANDISE SALES 27,116      38,108       10,778     11,371     37,894      49,479      47,050      105% 65,000       76%
   OTHER (13,971)     1,424         (2,675)      -           (16,646)     1,424        (19,390)     -7% (29,000)      -5%
          TOTAL REVENUE 930,551    1,184,111  295,528   343,691   1,226,079 1,527,802 1,422,644 107% 2,006,565  76%

LastYr  1,098,565   324,079    1,422,644 1,983,841  72%
EXPENDITURES:
   FULL TIME SALARIES 297,812    289,133     61,520     47,484     359,332    336,617    377,019    89% 607,761     55%
   PART TIME SALARIES 165,952    165,045     44,534     67,154     210,486    232,199    166,020    140% 461,120     50%
   FRINGE BENEFITS 183,994    166,076     23,376     23,835     207,370    189,911    175,945    108% 300,855     63%
   CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 59,083      71,711       15,061     8,320       74,144      80,031      51,135      157% 127,027     63%
   COMMODITIES 97,141      151,301     36,721     33,283     133,862    184,584    165,063    112% 242,820     76%
   MERCHANDISE 23,529      51,717       7,534       2,754       31,063      54,471      51,963      105% 50,000       109%
   UTILITIES 36,935      31,500       6,663       1,918       43,598      33,418      36,950      90% 83,067       40%
   SALES TAX/OTHER 1,311        2,215         -           1,188       1,311        3,403        3,160         5,200         65%
       TOTAL EXPENDITURES 865,757    928,698     195,409   185,936   1,061,166 1,114,634 1,027,255 109% 1,877,850  59%

LastYr  847,891      179,364    1,027,255 1,576,274  65%
REVENUE OVER(UNDER) EXP 64,794      255,413     100,119   157,755   164,913    413,168    395,389    128,715     

               2024 Budget vs. Actual

June YTD July July YTD

   For the Seven Months Ended July 31, 2024

Page 105 



GOLF COURSE MONTHLY RECEIPTS
                   Revenue Recap by Year

2022 2023 2024 YTD Annual
Month YTD Month YTD Month YTD Actual Budget

Jan (4,592)      (4,592)        Jan (4,238)      (4,238)        Jan 2,091       2,091         
Feb 151,220   146,628      Feb 161,321   157,083      Feb 178,473   180,564     Revenue 1,527,802 2,006,565
Mar 36,818     183,446      Mar 52,182     209,265      Mar 120,020   300,584     Expenditures
April 171,193   354,639      April 247,792   457,057      April 237,342   537,926     Full Time 336,617       607,761      
May 249,605   604,244      May 313,152   770,209      May 324,913   862,839     Part Time 232,199       461,120      
June 301,067   905,311      June 328,356   1,098,565   June 321,272   1,184,111  Benefits 189,911       300,855      
July 298,167   1,203,478   July 324,079   1,422,644   July 343,691   1,527,802  Contractual 80,031         127,027      
Aug 303,779   1,507,257   Aug 307,307   1,729,951   Aug -           -             Commodities 242,458       292,820      
Sept 239,377   1,746,634   Sept 245,173   1,975,124   Sept -           -             Utilities 33,418         88,267        
Oct 175,918   1,922,552   Oct 184,948   2,160,072   Oct -           -             1,114,634    1,877,850   
Nov 66,137     1,988,689   Nov 68,753     2,228,825   Nov -           -             Net 413,168       128,715      
Dec (4,848)      1,983,841   Dec 1,573       2,230,398   Dec -           -             

Budget 1,966,278 1,946,381 2,006,565

-1,000

49,000

99,000

149,000

199,000

249,000

299,000

349,000

399,000

Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2022

2023

2024

Page 106 



Change From Change From
2021 2022 2023 2024 2023 2022

REVENUES:
   RENTALS 221,994        199,402       238,911      243,619       2% 22%
   PASSES /USER FEES 221,615        211,770       240,296      237,924       -1% 12%
   DAILY /USER FEES 857,110        737,133       842,366      917,878       9% 25%
   PROGRAM FEES 64,178          61,773         73,411        77,478         6% 25%
   MERCHANDISE SALES 33,513          38,351         47,051        49,479         5% 29%
   OTHER (35,037)         (44,950)       (19,390)       1,424           -107% -103%
          TOTAL REVENUE 1,363,373     1,203,479    1,422,645   1,527,802    7% 27%

    % of Budget 72% 61% 73% 76%

EXPENDITURES:
   FULL TIME SALARIES 366,808        292,054       395,326      336,617       -15% 15%
   PART TIME SALARIES 141,225        142,202       166,020      232,199       40% 63%
   FRINGE BENEFITS 171,727        161,056       175,945      189,911       8% 18%
   CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 35,877          51,941         51,135        80,031         57% 54%
   COMMODITIES 143,437        122,525       166,329      184,584       11% 51%
   MERCHANDISE 27,090          29,771         51,963        54,471         5% 83%
   UTILITIES 42,554          38,663         36,950        33,418         -10% -14%
   SALES TAX/OTHER 1,966            1,469           3,160          3,403           8% 132%
       TOTAL EXPENDITURES 930,684        839,681       1,046,828   1,114,634    6% 33%

    % of Budget 54% 48% 57% 59%

REVENUE OVER(UNDER) EXP 432,689        363,798       375,817      413,168       

BUDGET REVENUE 1,892,550     1,966,278    1,946,381   2,006,565    
BUDGET EXPENSE 1,711,076     1,741,320    1,845,426   1,877,850    

Mount Prospect Park District
GOLF COURSE

thru July

Page 107 



ACCOUNT NAMES
TOTALS PRO SHOP MAINT. SALES RANGE LESSONS EVENTS GC COMM.

REVENUES:
   RENTAL 243,619        243,887          -               -           -                -               -           (268)            
   PASSES /USER FEES 237,924        237,924          -               -           -                -               -           -              
   DAILY /USER FEES 917,878        789,889          -               -           127,989         -               -           -              
   PROGRAM FEES 77,478          650                 -               -           -                64,190          12,638      -              
   MERCHANDISE SALES 49,479          - -               49,479     -                -               -           -              
   OTHER 1,424            1,424              -               -           -                -               -           -              
   SPONSORSHIPS -               -               -           -                -               -           -              
          TOTAL REVENUE 1,527,802     1,273,774       -               49,479     127,989         64,190          12,638      (268)            

    % of Budget 78% 73% n/a 76% 98% 291% 105% n/a

EXPENDITURES:
   FULL TIME SALARIES 336,617        103,832          194,516       -           -                1,726            -           36,543        
   PART TIME SALARIES 232,199        93,919            125,297       -           -                10,030          -           2,952          
   FRINGE BENEFITS 189,911        29,326            137,032       -           -                1,267            -           22,286        
   CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 80,031          51,035            6,754           -           -                10,787          -           11,456        
   COMMODITIES 184,584        9,224              145,283       162          14,516           3,154            7,629        4,617          
   MERCHANDISE 54,471          -                  -               54,471     -                -               -           
   UTILITIES 33,418          5,291              15,133         -           -                -               -           12,995        
   SALES TAX 3,403            -                  3,403       -                -               -           
       TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,114,634     292,626          624,014       58,036     14,516           26,964          7,629        90,848        

    % of Budget 66% 61% 57% 104% 121% 599% 64% 235%
 

REVENUE OVER(UNDER) EXP 413,168        981,148          (624,014)      (8,557)      113,473         37,226          5,009        (91,117)       

CHANGE FROM LAST YR  + ( - )
    REVENUE 428,240        344,484          -               14,070     58,833           1,519            9,603        (268)            
    EXPENDITURES 286,070        55,790            182,715       10,524     6,662             12,450          2,377        15,552        
    NET 142,170        288,694          (182,715)      3,546       52,170           (10,931)        7,226        (15,820)       
%  CHANGE FROM LAST YEAR
    REVENUE 39                 37                   n/a 40            n/a 2                   n/a n/a
    EXPENDITURES 35                 24                   41                22            85                  86                 n/a 21               

Golf Course Department by Function
For The Seven Months Ended 07-31-2024

Page 108 



Revenue Recap by yr:

2022 2023 2024
Month YTD Month YTD Month YTD

Jan -              -               Jan -              -                 Jan 3,006          3,006           22 Budget 1,165,000
Feb -              -               Feb -              -                 Feb 932             3,938           23 Budget 1,150,500
Mar 4,717          4,717           Mar 14,168       14,168           Mar 49,381       53,319        24 Budget 1,150,000
April 82,012       86,729         April 112,214     126,381        April 120,054     173,373      
May 160,831     247,560       May 189,551     315,932        May 196,330     369,703      
June 203,453     451,013       June 212,846     528,779        June 194,063     563,767      
July 198,166     649,178       July 207,148     735,927        July 215,086     778,853      
Aug 204,039     853,217       Aug 200,626     936,553        Aug -              778,853      
Sept 166,487     1,019,704   Sept 166,148     1,102,701     Sept -              778,853      
Oct 125,022     1,144,726   Oct 137,099     1,239,801     Oct -              778,853      
Nov 50,849       1,195,576   Nov 32,711       1,272,512     Nov -              778,853      
Dec 47               1,195,622   Dec -              1,272,512     Dec -              778,853      

MT Prospect Park District
Golf Course
Green Fees 

0

50000

100000

150000

200000

250000

Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2022

2023

2024

Page 109 



Revenue Recap by Year

2022 2023 2024
Month YTD Month YTD Month YTD

Jan 0 0 Jan 0 0 Jan 0 0 22 Budget 361,600
Feb 0 0 Feb 0 0 Feb 0 0 23 Budget 370,000
Mar 424             424               Mar -            -              Mar 11,517      11,517        24 Budget 371,500
April 15,697        16,121          April 30,264      30,264        April 33,428      44,946        
May 48,155        64,276          May 60,382      90,646        May 59,200      104,146      
June 61,486        125,762        June 69,197      159,843      June 65,693      169,839      
July 67,682        193,444        July 71,931      231,774      July 66,983      236,822      
Aug 65,065        258,509        Aug 63,892      295,665      Aug -            -              
Sept 53,372        311,880        Sept 52,932      348,597      Sept -            -              
Oct 30,075        341,955        Oct 30,495      379,092      Oct -            -              
Nov 12,516        354,471        Nov 13,215      392,307      Nov -            -              
Dec -              354,471        Dec -            392,307      Dec -            -              

Golf Course
Power Cart Rental 

 -

 10,000

 20,000

 30,000

 40,000

 50,000

 60,000

 70,000

 80,000

Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2022

2023

2024

Page 110 



Revenue Recap by yr:

2022 2023 2024
Month YTD Month YTD Month YTD

Jan -           -           Jan -           -           Jan -           -           22 Budget 114,300
Feb -           -           Feb -           -           Feb -           -           23 Budget 118,000
Mar 96             96             Mar -           -           Mar 6,066       6,066       24 Budget 130,000
April 10,690     10,786     April 16,186     16,186     April 20,155     26,221     
May 17,535     28,321     May 25,949     42,135     May 29,754     55,974     
June 24,600     52,921     June 27,072     69,206     June 32,385     88,359     
July 24,360     77,280     July 26,228     95,434     July 39,630     127,989   
Aug 25,008     102,289   Aug 27,088     122,523   Aug -           -           
Sept 15,950     118,239   Sept 16,844     139,367   Sept -           -           
Oct 11,295     129,534   Oct 11,349     150,716   Oct -           -           
Nov 4,866       134,400   Nov 4,797       155,513   Nov -           -           
Dec 35             134,435   Dec -           -           Dec -           -           

Mount Prospect Park District
Golf Course

Driving Range Revenue

 -

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

 25,000

 30,000

 35,000

 40,000

 45,000

Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2022

2023

2024

Page 111 



Revenue Recap by yr:
2022 2023 2024 YTD Annual

Month YTD Month YTD Month YTD Actual Budget
Jan 163,615     163,615        Jan 186,710     186,710        Jan 206,660     206,660        
Feb 208,904     372,519        Feb 210,814     397,524        Feb 222,332     428,992        Revenue 1,731,466 2,549,826
Mar 339,191     711,710        Mar 493,884     891,408        Mar 787,598     1,216,590     Expenditures
April 221,329     933,039        April 266,955     1,158,363     April 164,772     1,381,362     Part Time 480,229 912,847
May 164,467     1,097,506     May 155,429     1,313,792     May 110,823     1,492,185     Contractual 190,525 464,741
June 93,069       1,190,575     June 111,517     1,425,309     June 60,493       1,552,678     Commodities 185,282 323,244
July 107,505     1,298,080     July 127,645     1,552,954     July 178,788     1,731,466     856,036 1,700,832
Aug 239,418     1,537,498     Aug 263,226     1,816,180     Aug -              1,731,466     Net 875,430 848,994
Sept 128,019     1,665,517     Sept 151,278     1,967,458     Sept -              1,731,466     
Oct 148,068     1,813,585     Oct 167,456     2,134,914     Oct -              1,731,466     
Nov 161,479     1,975,064     Nov 182,469     2,317,383     Nov -              1,731,466     
Dec 157,425     2,132,489     Dec 158,608     2,475,991     Dec -              1,731,466     

Budget 1,990,273 2,318,700 2,549,826

      MT PROSPECT PARK DISTRICT
        PROGRAM REVENUE

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

700,000

800,000

900,000

Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2022

2023

2024

Page 112 



        
ACCOUNT NAMES  YOUTH/  SPECIAL  

TOTALS CHILD CARE ADULT YOUTH FITNESS EVENTS ARTS BASEBALL
REVENUES:
   PROGRAM FEES 1,629,360      764,063                  57,340              364,913            98,138            13,839          214,348         116,719            
   CHILD CARE 101,017         101,017                  -                    -                    -                 -                -                -                    
   VISA/MC CHARGES 1,089             (94)                         -                    897                   -                 -                (49)                334                   
          TOTAL REVENUE 1,731,466      864,986                  57,340              365,810            98,138            13,839          214,299         117,053            
    % of Budget 68% 71% 74% 66% 66% 63% 55% 79%

EXPENDITURES:
   PART TIME SALARIES 480,229         280,493                  3,511                16,704              59,511            -                116,018         3,993                
   CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 190,525         59,733                    17,372              56,546              2,615              18,218          -                36,042              
   COMMODITIES 185,282         14,910                    11,136              42,693              2,085              8,200            40,843           65,415              
   UTILITIES -                
       TOTAL EXPENDITURES 856,036         355,136                  32,019              115,943            64,211            26,418          156,860         105,450            
    % of Budget 50% 49% 49% 31% 55% 58% 64% 79%

 
REVENUE OVER(UNDER) EXP 875,429         509,851                  25,321              249,868            33,927            (12,579)         57,438           11,603              

$ CHANGE FROM 2023  + ( - )
    REVENUE 177,036         97,761                    9,045                10,931              1,507              1,641            22,425           33,726              
    EXPENDITURES 37,313           83,905                    10,723              (77,471)             2,094              2,135            11,198           4,728                
    NET 139,723         13,856                    (1,678)               88,402              (587)               (494)              11,227           28,997              

%  CHANGE FROM 2023
    REVENUE 11                  13                           19                     3                       2                     13                 12                  40                     
    EXPENDITURES 5                    31                           50                     (40)                    3                     9                   8                    5                       

ATHLETICS

MOUNT PROSPECT PARK DISTRICT
PROGRAMS Department by Function
For The Seven Months Ended 7-31-24

Page 113 



Revenue Recap by yr:

2022 2023 2024
Month YTD Month YTD Month YTD

Jan 38,678       38,678         Jan 47,284       47,284           Jan 65,871       65,871        
Feb 50,364       89,042         Feb 58,331       105,615        Feb 66,792       132,663      
Mar 247,266     336,308       Mar 392,528     498,143        Mar 617,071     749,733      
April 157,086     493,394       April 163,747     661,890        April 86,426       836,160      
May 57,031       550,425       May 48,605       710,495        May (1,481)        834,679      
June 19,000       569,425       June 36,654       747,149        June (14,658)      820,021      
July 24,939       594,364       July 18,601       765,749        July 44,965       864,986      
Aug 53,955       648,319       Aug 72,322       838,072        Aug -              864,986      
Sept 52,429       700,748       Sept 70,269       908,341        Sept -              864,986      
Oct 55,183       755,931       Oct 66,311       974,652        Oct -              864,986      
Nov 41,162       797,093       Nov 48,639       1,023,291     Nov -              864,986      
Dec 51,214       848,307       Dec 66,332       1,089,622     Dec -              864,986      

Budget 846,630 Budget 1,070,049 Budget 1,209,951

MT Prospect Park District
CHILD CARE PROGRAMS REVENUE

-100000

0

100000

200000

300000

400000

500000

600000

700000

Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2022

2023

2024

Page 114 



MOUNT PROSPECT PARK DISTRICT
CHILD CARE PROGRAMS
For The Seven Months Ended July 31, 2024

58% of Fiscal Year

ACCOUNT NAMES 2024 % of % of
2022 2023 Budget Month YTD Budget 2023

REVENUES:

Kids Klub 123,485 151,323      373,518 15,961 165,229 44% 109%
Day Camp 411,736 552,189 610,365 28,724 598,834 98% 108%
Preschool 59,143          72,815        243,068 281 101,017 42% 139%
VISA/MC Charges (10,578)       -17,000 (1) (94) 1% 1%

Total 594,364        765,749      1,209,951     44,965        864,986         71% 113%

EXPENDITURES:

Part Time Salaries 187,599        234,944      561,270        82,951        280,493         50% 119%
Contractual Services 16,926          22,649        123,159        36,675        59,733           49% 264%
Commodities 8,232             13,637        41,654          5,046          14,910           36% 109%

Total 212,757        271,230      726,083        124,672      355,136         49% 167%

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 381,607        494,519      483,868        (79,707)       509,851         

YTD 2024

Page 115 



Revenue & Expenditures
         Revenue Recap by Year

2022 2023 2024 YTD Annual
Month YTD Month YTD Month YTD Actual Budget

Jan 26,889   26,889     Jan 37,676   37,676      Jan 46,542   46,542      
Feb 21,829   48,718     Feb 42,910   80,586      Feb 59,067   105,609    Revenue 324,325 425,948
Mar 26,927   75,645     Mar 63,747   144,333    Mar 47,375   152,984    Expenditures
April 31,919   107,564   April 42,598   186,931    April 45,273   198,257    Full Time 171,144     360,219        
May 33,368   140,932   May 39,927   226,858    May 42,990   241,247    Part Time 146,456     326,832        
June 29,760   170,692   June 35,904   262,762    June 42,462   283,709    Benefits 99,980       172,695        
July 23,665   194,357   July 28,240   291,002    July 40,616   324,325    Contractual 16,480       65,700          
Aug 28,590   222,947   Aug 30,005   321,007    Aug -         -            Commodities 28,943       93,823          
Sept 26,224   249,171   Sept 35,071   356,078    Sept -         -            Utilities 87,819       232,577        
Oct 24,478   273,649   Oct 40,320   396,398    Oct -         -            550,822     1,251,846     
Nov 34,093   307,742   Nov 40,531   436,929    Nov -         -            Net (226,497)    (825,898)       
Dec 35,449   343,191   Dec 43,529   480,458    Dec -         -            

Budget 240,086 337,401 425,948

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2022

2023

2024

Page 116 



This Last This Last Change % Change
RENTALS  
     Building Rental 11,973        2,940          80,974        48,629        32,345        67%

Total 11,973        2,940          80,974        48,629        32,345        67%
PASS SALES
     Gym & Track 1,332          1,375          12,117        14,328        (2,211)         -15%
     Fitness 25,698        22,093        188,331      166,309      22,022        13%

Total 27,030        23,468        200,448      180,637      19,811        11%
DAILY FEES
     Gym & Track 3,458          4,338          31,298        33,767        (2,469)         -7%
     Fitness 669             844             5,842          5,575          267             5%
     Racquetball 178             283             1,939          2,569          (630)            -25%

Total 4,305          5,465          39,078        41,911        (2,833)         -7%
PROGRAM FEES
     Special Programs (3,357)         (3,856)         -              19,743        (19,743)       n/a

Total (3,357)         (3,856)         -              19,743        (19,743)       n/a
CONCESSIONS
     Merchandise 164             175             848             852             (4)                0%
     Vending 502             74               3,010          3,274          (264)            -8%

Total 666             249             3,858          4,126          (268)            -7%
OTHER -              
     Visa Charges / OvSt (0)                (596)            (32)              (4,044)         4,012          -99%

TOTAL 40,616        27,670        324,325      291,002      33,323        11%
 
 
 
 

 REVENUE REPORT
Jul-24

MONTH YEAR to DATE Up (Down)

Page 117 



Change From Change From
2021 2022 2023 2024 2023 2022

REVENUES:
   RENTALS 67,261          31,071         48,629        80,974         67% 161%
   PASSES /USER FEES 72,502          125,599       180,637      200,448       11% 60%
   DAILY /USER FEES 3,404            24,884         41,911        39,078         -7% 57%
   PROGRAM FEES 7,334            14,599         19,743        -              -100% -100%
   MERCHANDISE  & VENDING 656               2,578           4,126          3,858           -7% 50%
   OTHER/visa (3,409)           (4,375)         (4,044)         (32)              -99% -99%
          TOTAL REVENUE 147,748        194,356       291,002      324,325       11% 67%

    % of Budget 92% 81% 77% 76%

EXPENDITURES:
   FULL TIME SALARIES 182,888        134,267       152,843      171,144       12% 27%
   PART TIME SALARIES 103,262        135,402       135,526      146,456       8% 8%
   FRINGE BENEFITS 96,592          84,415         86,178        99,980         16% 18%
   CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 16,148          24,979         26,663        16,480         -38% -34%
   COMMODITIES 23,446          24,149         35,564        28,468         -20% 18%
   MERCHANDISE 217               286              403             475              18% 66%
   UTILITIES 115,130        105,033       111,542      87,819         -21% -16%
       TOTAL EXPENDITURES 537,683        508,531       548,719      550,822       0% 8%

    % of Budget 50% 46% 48% 44%

REVENUE OVER(UNDER) EXP (389,935)       (314,175)      (257,717)     (226,497)      

BUDGET REVENUE 161,356        240,086       377,401      425,948       
BUDGET EXPENSE 1,068,362     1,108,169    1,144,497   1,251,846    

thru July

Page 118 



Revenue and Expenditures Report
       Revenue Recap by Year

2022 2023 2024 YTD Annual
Month YTD Month YTD Month YTD Actual Budget

Jan 0 0 Jan 0 0 Jan 0 0
Feb 0 0 Feb 0 0 Feb 0 0 Revenue 115,267 112,533
Mar -          -            Mar -          -            Mar -          -            Expenditures
April 4,132       4,132         April 21,978     21,978       April 22,426     22,426       Full Time 38,944          72,166           
May 44,751     48,883       May 5,212       27,190       May 4,444       26,870       Part Time 48,743          83,321           
June 32,705     81,588       June 34,928     62,118       June 45,669     72,539       Benefits 17,376          29,297           
July 34,065     115,653     July 36,981     99,099       July 42,728     115,267     Contractual 1,932            8,580             
Aug 7,998       123,651     Aug 15,225     114,324     Aug -          -            Commodities 23,493          41,225           
Sept -          123,651     Sept 261          114,585     Sept -          -            Utilities 4,226            18,080           
Oct -          123,651     Oct -          114,585     Oct -          -            Net 134,714        252,669         
Nov -          123,651     Nov -          114,585     Nov -          -            (19,447)         (140,136)        
Dec -          123,651     Dec -          114,585     Dec -          115,267     

Budget 86,466 107,640 112,533

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

45,000

50,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2022

2023

2024

Page 119 



Meadows Pool Revenue & Expenditures
         Revenue Recap by Year

2022 2023 2024 YTD Annual
Month YTD Month YTD Month YTD Actual Budget

Jan -          -            Jan -          -            Jan -          -            
Feb -          -            Feb -          -            Feb -          -            Revenue 187,068 192,000
Mar -          -            Mar -          -            Mar -          -            Expenditures
April 24,234    24,234      April 74,003    74,003      April 77,084    77,084      Full Time 33,740      60,113         
May 62,974    87,208      May 34,456    108,459    May 26,868    103,952    Part Time 86,082      160,386       
June 38,172    125,380    June 53,411    161,870    June 57,566    161,518    Benefits 12,330      19,813         
July 20,988    146,368    July 26,117    187,987    July 25,550    187,068    Contractual 3,670        14,480         
Aug 9,782      156,150    Aug 12,104    200,091    Aug -          187,068    Commodities 26,688      40,225         
Sept 1,796      157,946    Sept 7,176      207,267    Sept -          187,068    Utilities 18,336      69,666         
Oct -          157,946    Oct 750         208,017    Oct -          187,068    180,846    364,683       
Nov -          157,946    Nov -          208,017    Nov -          187,068    6,222        (172,683)      
Dec -          157,946    Dec -          208,017    Dec -          187,068    

Budget 137,891 171,450 192,000

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

 Jan  Feb  Mar  April  May  June  July  Aug  Sept  Oct  Nov  Dec

2022

2023

2024

Page 120 



Revenue Recap by yr:
2022 2023 2024 YTD Annual

Month YTD Month YTD Month YTD Actual Budget
Jan 12,671     12,671       Jan 17,312     17,312       Jan 25,898     25,898       
Feb 33,061     45,732       Feb 45,585     62,897       Feb 60,272     86,170       Revenue 269,306 438,690
Mar 20,539     66,271       Mar 25,264     88,161       Mar 31,880     118,050     Expenditures
April 43,508     109,779     April 53,246     141,407     April 50,643     168,693     Full Time 59,893       108,255               
May 29,366     139,145     May 27,094     168,501     May 42,444     211,137     Part Time 172,795     311,104               
June 25,275     164,420     June 28,716     197,217     June 32,720     243,857     Benefits 22,920       35,539                 
July 20,106     184,526     July 22,817     220,034     July 25,449     269,306     Commodities 30,611       59,317                 
Aug 104,997   289,523     Aug 114,023   334,057     Aug -            -              Utilities 20,815       64,262                 
Sept 22,998     312,521     Sept 35,214     369,271     Sept -            -              307,034     578,477               
Oct 24,024     336,545     Oct 27,857     397,128     Oct -            -              Net (37,728)      (139,787)              
Nov 43,095     379,640     Nov 50,039     447,167     Nov -            -              
Dec 20,803     400,443     Dec 26,215     473,382     Dec -            -              

Budget 359,038 362,146 438,690

MT PROSPECT PARK DISTRICT
RECPLEX POOL REVENUE

 -

 20,000

 40,000

 60,000

 80,000

 100,000

 120,000

Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2022

2023

2024

Page 121 



Change From Change From
2021 2022 2023 2024 2023 2022

REVENUES:
   BUILDING RENTAL 6,000            25                -            2,640            n/a 10460%
   PASSES /USER FEES 34,498          50,368         67,357       77,165          15% 53%
   DAILY /USER FEES 2,512            2,712           2,945         3,163            7% 17%
   PROGRAM FEES 135,646        131,421       157,250     186,405        19% 42%
  VISA/MC CHARGES -                -              (7,517)       (67)                -99% n/a
          TOTAL REVENUE 178,656        184,526       220,035     269,306        22% 46%

    % of Budget 136% 51% 61% 61%

EXPENDITURES:
   FULL TIME SALARIES 49,822          70,917         49,651       59,893          21% -16%
   PART TIME SALARIES 114,225        120,338       141,784     172,795        22% 44%
   FRINGE BENEFITS 17,637          17,423         21,149       22,920          8% 32%
   CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 2,265            2,279           -            5,139            n/a 125%
   COMMODITIES 11,375          20,598         13,558       25,472          88% 24%
   UTILITIES 27,329          26,339         27,804       20,815          -25% -21%
   SALES TAX/OTHER
       TOTAL EXPENDITURES 222,653        257,894       253,946     307,034        21% 19%

    % of Budget 47% 51% 47% 53%

REVENUE OVER(UNDER) EXP (43,997)         (73,368)       (33,911)     (37,728)         

BUDGET REVENUE 131,000        359,038       362,146     438,690        
BUDGET EXPENSE 476,503        508,519       537,626     578,477        

Mount Prospect Park District
REC PLEX POOL

thru July

Page 122 



        Revenue Recap by Year:

2022 2023 2024 YTD Annual
Month YTD Month YTD Month YTD Actual Budget

Jan 9,333       9,333         Jan 14,753     14,753       Jan 15,347     15,347       
Feb 12,370     21,703       Feb 21,434     36,187       Feb 24,963     40,310       Revenue 201,879 285,764
Mar 20,870     42,573       Mar 48,726     84,913       Mar 70,017     110,327     Expenditures
April 27,967     70,540       April 34,198     119,111     April 29,288     139,615     Part Time 18,204     41,254      
May 23,351     93,891       May 33,190     152,301     May 34,925     174,540     Contractual 88,379     174,630    
June 15,257     109,148     June 25,436     177,737     June 26,762     201,302     Commodities 232          1,977        
July 1,032       110,180     July 5,202       182,939     July 577          201,879     106,815   217,861    
Aug 44,018     154,198     Aug 39,929     222,868     Aug -           -             Net 95,064     67,903      
Sept 13,120     167,318     Sept 17,223     240,091     Sept -           -             
Oct 12,256     179,574     Oct 10,608     250,699     Oct -           -             
Nov 14,000     193,574     Nov 17,921     268,620     Nov -           -             
Dec 22,353     215,927     Dec 21,040     289,660     Dec -           -             

Budget 98,386 181,569 285,764

 PROGRAM REVENUE

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2022

2023

2024

Page 123 



   
ACCOUNT NAMES  YOUTH YOUTH

TOTALS CHILD CARE ATHLETICS
REVENUES:
   PROGRAM FEES 201,902                 40,769                   161,133                 
   CHILD CARE -                         
   VISA/MC CHARGES (23)                         (23)                         
          TOTAL REVENUE 201,879                 40,769                   161,110                 

    % of Budget 70% 71% 69%

EXPENDITURES:
   PART TIME SALARIES 18,204                   18,204                   -                         
   CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 88,379                   -                         88,379                   
   COMMODITIES 232                        232                        -                         
       TOTAL EXPENDITURES 106,815                 18,437                   88,379                   

    % of Budget 49% 42% 51%
 

REVENUE OVER(UNDER) EXP 95,064                   22,332                   72,731                   

CHANGE FROM LAST YR  + ( - )
    REVENUE 18,940                   5,496                     13,444                   
    EXPENDITURES 25,072                   1,851                     23,221                   
    NET (6,132)                    3,645                     (9,777)                    
%  CHANGE FROM LAST YEAR
    REVENUE 10                          16                          9                            
    EXPENDITURES 31                          11                          36                          

 PROGRAMS Department by Function
Month Ended 07-31-24

Page 124 



         Revenue Recap by Year

2022 2023 2024 YTD Annual
Month YTD Month YTD Month YTD Actual Budget

Jan 33,815       33,815         Jan 43,595     43,595       Jan 44,017     44,017       
Feb 34,070       67,886         Feb 43,217     86,812       Feb 48,806     92,823       Revenue 261,528 432,424
Mar 33,990       101,876       Mar 40,378     127,190     Mar 54,123     146,946     Expenditures
April 31,380       133,256       April 39,299     166,489     April 31,226     178,172     Full Time 140,138       245,750      
May 29,757       163,013       May 27,570     194,059     May 24,701     202,873     Part Time 109,162       194,280      
June 25,220       188,233       June 26,149     220,208     June 43,130     246,003     Benefits 50,848         88,413        
July 19,324       207,557       July 16,447     236,655     July 15,525     261,528     Contractual 35,509         69,207        
Aug 24,722       232,279       Aug 27,302     263,957     Aug -          -            Commodities 27,783         71,798        
Sept 18,839       251,118       Sept 21,885     285,842     Sept -          -            Utilities 32,798         72,690        
Oct 35,748       286,866       Oct 45,481     331,323     Oct -          -            396,238       742,138      
Nov 57,059       343,925       Nov 53,456     384,779     Nov -          -            Net (134,710)      (309,714)    
Dec 44,711       388,636       Dec 56,022     440,801     Dec -          -            

Budget 258,974 354,857 432,424

Central Community Center Revenue & Expenditures

 -

 10,000

 20,000

 30,000

 40,000

 50,000

 60,000

Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2022

2023

2024

Page 125 



Up/(Down)
This Last This Last Change % Change

RENTALS
     Building Rental 4,954      7,788      146,130    125,173     20,957     17%

4,954      7,788      146,130    125,173     20,957     17%
PASS SALES

Gym Pass 167         1,592      1,517        1,592         (75)           -5%
     Fitness 9,489      7,859      69,795      60,257       9,538       16%

9,655      9,451      71,312      61,849       9,538       15%
DAILY FEES
     Gym Fees 572         (740)        10,027      9,194         833          9%
     Fitness Center 378         146         2,105        1,463         642          44%

950         (594)        12,132      10,657       1,475       14%
PROGRAM FEES
     Youth Leagues (540)        (695)        (536)          602            (1,138)      -189%
     Special Programs 91           457         29,184      38,341       (9,157)      -24%

(449)        (238)        28,648      38,943       (10,295)    -26%
CONCESSIONS
     Merchandise 149         56           1,686        1,780         (94)           -5%
     Vending 266         -          1,649        1,875         (226)         -12%

415         56           3,335        3,655         (320)         -9%
OTHER
     Visa Charges / OvShrt (0)            (544)        (29)            (3,621)        3,592       -99%

TOTAL 15,525    15,919    261,528    236,656     24,947     11%

 REVENUE REPORT
July 2024

         MONTH               YEAR to DATE

Page 126 



Property Tax Assessed
Tax Yr. Jan. 1 - Dec. 31 Valuation Rate
    
2016 9,820,200                        1,653,232,361                 0.594
2017 10,145,281                      1,667,332,206                 0.609
2018 10,417,103                      1,645,671,872                 0.633
2019 10,641,495                      1,945,499,549                 0.547
2020 10,945,316                      1,975,432,038                 0.554
2021 11,313,601                      1,833,646,800                 0.617
2022 11,960,090                      2,186,488,184                 0.547

Tax Monies Received from January 1, 2024 through July 31, 2024 totals:
$9,499,618 (of this total $215,792 is Replacement Tax).

Type 2023 Taxes 2024 Taxes

January R 81,211                             47,688                             
January 2,421,341                        -                                   
February 31,198                             1,578,486                        
March R 40,229                             28,122                             
March 2,761,313                        4,549,417                        
 April R 63,914                             25,083                             
 April 3,058,300                        -                                   
 May R 103,699                           60,641                             
 May 182,966                           
 June 114,497                           36,039                             
 July R 83,835                             54,258                             
 July 2,936,918                        
 August R 13,517                             
 August 231,824                           
 September
 October R 69,448                             
 October 
 November 1,963,379                        
 December 3,616,410                        
 December R 21,566                             

TOTAL 14,675,682                      9,499,618                        

MT. PROSPECT PARK DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX

MONTH ENDING
7/31/24

Page 127 



Busey Bank
Accounts Maturity Amount Rate Term
Investment n/a 9,258,194            4.46% Demand
Busey Wealth Mtg - GS Fed Fd n/a 6,348,407            5.17% Demand
C.D - 7 Months 7191 8/15/2024 1,498,649            4.00% 7 Months
C.D - 7 Months 4796 8/12/2024 1,822,140            4.00% 7 Months
CD - 7 Months 7175 8/15/2024 2,971,619            4.00% 7 Months
Main Account n/a 3,107,681            1.25% Demand
Accounts Payable n/a 529,437               1.25%
Payroll n/a 421,041               1.25%
Petty Cash n/a 4,650                   n/a

Total Funds 25,961,818          

Mt. Prospect Park District
Statement of Account Balances

As of July 31, 2024

Investment 
36%

Busey Wealth Mtg -
GS Fed Fd

24%

C.D - 7 Months 7191
6%

C.D - 7 Months 4796
7%

CD - 7 Months 7175
11%

Main Account
12%

Accounts Payable
2%

Payroll 
2%

Petty Cash
0%

Page 128 



Executive Director August 2024

2024 Proposal Update
Following the Board’s adoption of Resolution 852 at our July 17th Regular Board meeting, the
required fully executed copies of the Resolution were submitted to the Cook County Clerk's
Office on July 30th, 2024 by Attorney Hoffman. The District’s official ballot question will appear
on the Tuesday, November 5, 2024 general election ballot for the public’s consideration.

The District will now rely on the efforts of a volunteer based committee for campaigning and
fundraising efforts to support the District’s 2024 proposal. The Mt. Prospect Parks Foundation
has generously agreed to donate $1,500 to help kickoff fundraising efforts to begin the public
information campaign process.

The District will begin a series of factual information posts to help educate the public on matters
related to the 2024 Proposal. Staff will continue to provide future updates to the Board as this
process continues to move forward.

Future Grant Assistance
Over this past year, the District has had the good fortune to have been the recipient of multiple
grant funding opportunities. We are extremely grateful for the significant financial benefit this
funding has contributed to our District. With that said, the management of these grants have
created significant challenges within our administrative division. The processing of multiple
grants during the same fiscal year has resulted in a substantial burden on our staff making it
difficult for them to focus on their primary responsibilities.

In an effort to relieve staff of this additional workload, we have been researching qualified
agencies who can assist with the grant administration process. We are hopeful to find an agency
who offers full-service grant writing with complete proposal development, submission, and
follow-up. Annual contractual engagements for full grant writing and reporting is expected to
range between $10k-$25k. An agency with an AmpliFund specialist on staff would be a plus. This
direction would be much more reasonable than hiring a full time grant writer for the District.

Upcoming Board Reminder
Regular Board Meeting - Wednesday, September 18, 2024 - 6:30 pm @ CCC

Page 129 



Golf Operations Report August 2024

News & Updates:

August 2024 (January 1, 2024 through July 31, 2024)

Golf Rounds 2019 2023 2024 Variance '23 to '24

Paid Resident Rounds 2,750 3,171 2,899 -272

Paid Non-Resident Rounds 13,999 18,821 19,100 279

Annual Membership Rounds 3,036 3,785 3,809 24

Total Rounds 19,785 25,777 25,808 31

Despite nearly 6" of rain when only 3.50" is normal, we blew away last year's July record
revenue. This month ended up with $343,000 in revenue when the budget was for
$295,000 and last year we recorded $324,000. This puts revenue YTD $294,000 over
budget and $98,000 over last season. Expenses were down slightly from budget for the
month. YTD expenses are $30,000 over budget. This gives us a net surplus of $264,000
overall. To put this year’s revenue in perspective, our $1.52M so far this season is the
exact total we made in the entire 2019 season and we still have 4 months left!

Our Annual Club Championship took place July 29th-August 4th. Monday, July 29th was
the Junior Club Championship for ages 4-13. We had 47 participants broken into 4-5, 6-7,
8-9, 10-11 and 12-13 year old age brackets playing a various number of holes and
distances. Trophies were awarded to 1st, 2nd and 3rd place for both boys and girls in
each age division. Tuesday, July 30th was the Senior Club Championship, which was an
18-hole low net with handicap event. The winner was Gregg Duncan with a net score of
67. Finally over the weekend of August 3rd and 4th was the Men’s 36-hole and the
Women’s 18-hole Championship. Maddie Bielecki, who just turned 15 the day before,
shot her best round of her life at the course and won the Women’s Club Championship
with a score of 83. Patrick Raupp, who played on Prospect High School’s Team last
season, won the Men’s Club Championship with scores of 74 and 71 for a two-day total of
145. The awards ceremony took place the evening of August 4th.

Overall, the week was great and went off without a hitch with many compliments. Kudos
to my amazing staff for all their hard work and long hours to make this event a success
especially Superintendent Darin Douglas, who made sure the course was in top notch
condition and Golf Operations Manager Debra Cromie, who help prep all week for the
tournament and wrote all the scores downs all week with her beautiful penmanship. Both
Darin and Debra worked over 60 hours Monday-Sunday without a day off! I also like to
thank Assistant Professional Adam Wessell for all his hard work in creating all the
scoresheets and being the one to start all the kids, seniors, men and women off the 1st
tee all week and keeping everything on time.

Page 130 



During this past month, we continued to receive many compliments in person and online.
Some of the new comments in reviews online were, “Great Layout, challenging greens”,
“Course is in great shape”, “Fabulous Course! Really love playing here! Great layout!
Excellent condition! Challenging but still so much fun! So worth it! Can’t wait to play this
course again!”, “Best greens in the area, I really enjoyed the layout of the course and
particularly the rolling and multi level greens” and “Beautiful course....well groomed &
maintained. Great practice facility too. Bunkers in great shape! Fun though it beat me that
day but it's a challenge...I'll be back! Loved it!”.

Maintenance:

The cattails around the pond between the 10th and 18th holes have been cut down in
some places. This has been very popular with the golfers. It opens up the view from the
18th tee of the 18th fairway, which allows a golfer to better see where their tee shot
lands as well as for safety in being able to see if there are any golfers in the fairway
before teeing off. Cutting down the cattails also opens up the view of our most
picturesque green on the course on hole #11, which now can be seen from many more
points on the golf course. Cattails were purposely left near the pumphouse and drainage
inlets to help filter the water before it enters the pond and the pumphouse since this is
the pond we use to irrigate the course.

Page 131 



RECREATION DIVISION August 21, 2024

Aquatics
Linda Zalewski, Aquatics Manager
Pete Nocchi, Aquatics Supervisor

● Pool pass sales are strong for the 2024 season. As of August 7th, there are
currently 1,851 summer pool pass holders with revenue at $128,555 (2023 - 1853
passes $128,507).

● Big Surf’s 40th celebration was on July 8th. The event featured throwback fun, $3
rafts, raffles and free hot dogs to the first 250 guests. Pool pass holders were free.
Total revenue was $894.

● Summer swim lessons began on Monday, June 10th & concluded on Friday August
2nd. There were a total of 668 enrollments with total revenue of $58,924.

● A total of 115 private lessons were taught in the month of July for a total revenue of
$3,766. So far in 2024, over 788 private swim lessons were taught compared to 472
in the same time frame in 2023.

● The Sharks Swim Team wrapped up its Summer Season with a total of 114
swimmers with total revenue of $34,908. The Sharks hosted the A Divisional
Championship Meet on Wednesday, July 24th at Meadows Pool. Admission
revenue for the meet was $2,075, with 415 paying spectators and 350 competing
swimmers across 6 teams. We also had a t-shirt venue on site and received a 20%
kickback on sales for a total of $2,000!

● AquaFit Unlimited had a total of 80 active members in July with 75 members on a
recurring monthly membership. Total revenue for AquaFit in July was $5,756.

● A new program began this summer called Discover Scuba with a local MP Resident
at Meadows Pool. This program gives participants the basic knowledge to see if
they are interested in taking the full scuba class to get their certification. Six total
classes were run with a total of 12 students for $1,500 in revenue.

● In addition, staff created a new program at Meadows Pool called Introduction to
Synchronized Swimming. There were a total of five participants with a total revenue
of $525.

● Staff have partnered with a local ISR (Infant Swimming Resource) instructor to offer
pool space to run infant lessons at RecPlex teaching a life saving skill for children.
ISR utilizes the tot pool at RecPlex at times it’s underutilized. Total rental revenue
for the six week summer session was $980.

Page 132 



Athletics
Brad Wessel, Athletics Manager
Adam Trzaska, Athletics Supervisor

● 2025 Patriots Baseball tryouts took place on Sunday, July 28 at CCC and on Thursday,
August 1 at Meadows & Lions Park. There were a total of 102 players that tried out. This
year, Health Performance Institute (HPI) professional baseball coaches were hired to run
and evaluate players through the tryouts.

● Fall Baseball & Softball League registration ended on July 15 with a total of 386
participants registered. This year is down 54 participants from last fall due to some
Patriots baseball players not participating in our fall league and with increases to soccer
& football programs.

● Spring/summer adult athletic leagues are starting to wrap up with end of the season
playoffs. The fall season will begin in early September.

● Registration for the fall outdoor soccer league concluded at the end of July with a total of
591 participants. This is an increase of 23 participants from Fall 2023. The increase of
participants resulted in a revenue increase of $3,298.

● Pre-K soccer registration also closed at the end of July with an increase of 15
participants from Fall 2023 to get a total of 92 participants. The revenue increase is
$1,305.

● The second session of our new tennis program began mid July. Participant feedback is
very positive especially with the quality of instructors.

● We Got Game programming is finishing up their last couple of summer camps. Their
volleyball camp at the end of July saw 20 participants for the week.

● Athletics and parks staff met to discuss fall programming and the use of fields. Fields will
be used for Fall soccer, baseball, softball, football, and sport classes.

Early Childhood & Youth Programs
Kristina Winans, Early Childhood & Youth Manager
Amy Heinrichs, Early Childhood & Youth Supervisor

● Camp revenue in March 2024 was at an all time high. Consequently, camp revenue in
June was negative due to summer school and vacations. Many patrons secured their
spots back in March prior to deciding on their summer plans. Patrons knew they could
unenroll during the summer due to our two week cancellation policy. Due to popular
demand, and District 57 going back to school later than normal, staff have added 8 more
individual days of camp in August (12th-21st). July is a very positive month totaling
$28,724 (-$666 in 2023). For the year, camp is up $52,132 through the same period in
2023.

End of Summer Programming:
● Tot Summer classes continue to run strong. Nature Navigators had 10 enrolled, Ready,

Set, Play had 10 enrolled in both sections, Fun In the Sun had 18 enrolled and our
Preschool Prep class had 6 enrolled.

Page 133 



● The Rock n Kids second summer session was again a popular one! Tot Rock had 12
participants, and Kid Rock had 7 participants.

● Computer Explorers class “Robot Engineers” ran with 5 MPPD participants
● LEGO Camp classes came to an end. The younger classes both ran with 14

participants and the older classes ran with 15 and 13 participants.
● July 24 was our annual Day Camp Night. An estimated 250 campers and their families

attended a night of games, prizes, bounce houses, (fan favorite) counselor dunk tank,
food trucks, sponsors, and more!

24/25 School Year Enrollment:
● Preschool and KinderKlub tours have continued
● Preschool currently has 109 registrations as of 8/4/24.
● KinderKlub and Circle of Friends Enrichment programs currently have 41 registrations.

13 Circle of Friends and 28 KinderKlub.
● KidsKlub currently has 106 registrations and the current enrollment breakdown is AM: 46

PM: 74.
● Staff are in the process of hiring more KidsKlub, Preschool and KinderKlub staff.
● Amanda Frost-Frakes, our new Early Childhood and Youth Coordinator, started on July

29th.
● Kristina & Amy met with Lead Preschool teachers to go over initial school year items,

Important Dates, etc.

Facilities
Brian Hecker, Central Community Center Manager

● Open Pickleball in July had 132 participants for $620 in revenue.
○ 2023 - 185 for $1185
○ Players during the Summer typically shift to outside

● Karate Summer classes have 152 registrations for $27, 670 in revenue.
● Hot Shots Summer classes have 505 registrations for $71, 800 in revenue.
● Canine Commons had 21 registrations for $1,025 in revenue in July.
● New window tint was applied to all windows in the gym.
● CCC monthly fire extinguisher report and AED check was completed

CCC Facility Rentals July 2024 July 2023

CCC Turf/Parties $1,655.00 $1,862.00

CCC Gym/Room $3,299.00 $5,925.00
Timing of monthly payments should be considered when comparing month to month. Gym rental/open gym revenue may change
month to month/year to year based on District program space needs.

Page 134 



Toria Smith, Lions Recreation Center & Cultural Arts Manager

● Each year The Studio closes down for the first week in July due to the Lions Club
Carnival taking place at Melas Park for Fourth of July Celebrations. This year we were
closed from July 2-7.

● The Art Studio attended the Downtown Block Party on July 27th, hosting a table during
the Kids Zone afternoon. Visitors were able to create stained glass panels with sharpie
markers and plastic sheets.

● The Art Studio had a great lineup of classes and camps happening in July.
○ Great Create Art Camp - Animals themed with a maxed out group at 25 kids.
○ Great Create Art Camp - Safari themed with 22 kids accommodating all the

waitlist.
○ Cartooning and More with 22 students.
○ DIY Dollhouse with a maxed out group of 20 kids.

■ Thanks to the entire Recreation Team who helped build dollhouses in
preparation for this camp!

● Kids on Stage wrapped up their weekly classes in July and prepared to head into tech
week for their production at the beginning of August.

● Mt. Prospect Community Band held 5 of their 6 Summer Concert Series concerts in the
month of July. Half of the series was plagued with bad weather and we were able to
move into Lions Rec Center to still put on the concerts for our audience. We had a
wonderful turnout for all of the concerts this year and it is a testament to the bands
performances as well as teamwork with Marketing.

● Mt. Prospect Community Band concluded their summer concert series on Monday, July
29th with a fantastic Ticket to Broadway show. Each year the band and our dance
companies collaborate on one concert and have the dancers perform to the band's
music. This is our most heavily attended concert and this year was no exception as we
saw 300 plus attendees in the gym at Lions due to the rainy weather.

● Ballet Expressions performed with the Community Band to "Phantom of the Opera".
This was one of the last performances for some of our seniors and a preview for
upcoming seniors. They did a great job making last minute adjustments to the indoor
location and received a standing ovation.

Lions Recreation Center
● Lions continued to be full of activity this summer with day camp, dance, Lego camp and

We Got Game camps happening throughout the day as well as Monday and Thursday
night concerts.

● Drawing Fundamentals art class took place at Lions due to large class sizes and
participants were able to visit the outdoors to learn about perspective and nature
drawing.

● The youth department hosted their Camp Night Out at Lions Memorial Bandshell on July
24. Campers from all the day camps came together for a fun night of games and
activities.

Page 135 



Lions Facility Rentals July 2024 July 2023

Facility Rentals $4,993.00 $1,050.00

Lions Open Gym $156.00 $224.00
Timing of monthly payments should be considered when comparing month to month. Gym rental/open gym revenue may change
month to month/year to year based on District program space needs.

Mike Azzaretto, Director of Recreation
Tim Sullivan, Fitness Supervisor
Fitness

● Digital lockers near group fitness studios were installed. These lockers allow
patrons the option to securely store their personal items without having to walk to
the locker room.

● The CCC and the RecPlex Fitness Centers underwent their annual deep clean in
July. While one was shut down, the other fitness center was open for use.

● RecPlex Fitness Center upgraded to larger TVs, fresh paint, and a new floor plan
that allowed staff to create a walkway for patrons.

● The bulletin board at the entrance of the RecPlex fitness center was replaced with a
TV that advertises various Park District offerings.

● A new group fitness class offering was added to the fall schedule. Patrons had
requested another “low impact” class offering. The Walk Live class on Wednesday
night will fill that need.

RecPlex Facility
● Staff have been meeting with the Village of Mt. Prospect to coordinate Celebration of

Cultures at RecPlex on August 24th. We look forward to hosting this wonderful event on
our grounds.

● In coordination with the Lions Club, RecPlex held free vision test screenings in July.
● Thanks to the Employee Committee, RecPlex hosted staff volleyball on July 11th. Staff

had fun and it was a nice break in the work day.
● RPX monthly fire extinguisher report and AED check was completed.

RecPlex Revenues July 2024 July 2023

RecPlex Rentals $11,972.50 $2,940.00

RecPlex Open Gym $3,458.00 $4,399.00

Fitness Memberships $43,622.00 $38,543.00

Personal Training/Massage $7,053.00 $6,374.00

Timing of monthly payments should be considered when comparing month to month. Gym rental/open gym revenue may change
month to month/year to year based on District program space needs.

Page 136 



Administration & Human Resources August 2024
News & Updates:

● Accounts Payable Notes for July: The AP register for July 2024 totals to $1,228,887.96,
with several capital-related payments included in this total:

○ Bear Construction (FPC Phase #2): $99,112.14
○ Great Lakes Landscape Company (FPC Phase #1): $138,484.35
○ Nicholas & Associates (Lions Phase #1): $179,956.07
○ Great Lakes Landscape Company (FPC Phase #2): $133,561.69

● Friendship OSLAD Grant Closeout - Update: With FPC Phase #1 construction
successfully completed, on July 24th staff submitted closeout paperwork to our OSLAD
grant representatives at IDNR. This included all the required expense schedules, billing
and performance reports, and a completed CPA Agreed Upon Procedures document
provided by the Park District’s auditing firm, Illinois NFP Audit & Tax, LLP. Once the
closeout process is completed, the Park District will await the $400,000 reimbursement
provided for by this grant. Thank you to everyone involved in this successful project,
including our professional services and construction vendors, dedicated staff, auditing
partners and grant representatives.

● FY 2025 - Budgeting Process Begins: Budget spreadsheets for the next fiscal year were
released ahead of schedule this year. Over the next few months, staff will be itemizing
revenues and expenses throughout the budget in preparation for a Board preview in
November. Per the District’s usual financial schedule, the budget will remain on the
agenda as a discussion item all the way through March of 2025 when the final Budget &
Appropriation Ordinance is brought before the Park Board for approval. The annual cycle
for capital is different this year, however, as this fall’s issuance will be for debt obligations
only. Capital considerations will return in 2025.

H.R. by the Numbers: July 2024
New-Hires: 5

Payroll Changes (to update employment status, pay-rate, or job-class): 8

Criminal Background Checks (including new-hires, volunteers and coaches): 20

Reportable Injuries - Total to date for 2024: 3

Unemployment Claims (new claims): 0

Page 137 



Parks & Planning August 2024

Administrative / Planning:
● The Lions Park tennis courts are now open for play. The new playground is expected to

open for use the week of August 12th. At that time, fencing will be relocated to the old
playground area so that removals and excavation can begin. We are expecting to have the
project completed in its entirety by September 13th.

● Mobilization and playground equipment delivery for the Owen Park improvements are
scheduled to begin the week of August 19th. The project is expected to take approximately
4-6 weeks to complete.

● Pool improvements at RecPlex are currently underway including replastering of both pools
and upgrades to the pool mechanical room. The project is currently ahead of schedule and
is anticipated to be completed by the second week of September.

● The RecPlex Racquetball Renovation project is currently out for bid. A recommendation will
be brought forward to the September Board meeting for Board consideration.

● New paving has been completed along the ComEd trail between Algonquin Rd and
Linneman Rd. New signage has been installed and remaining work includes site restoration.

Conservatory:
● Staff hosted the NWSRA Summer Explorer Field Trip.

● Started seeds for fall seasonal plantings at parks and buildings and fall planter classes.

● Began work on refinishing our native pollinator swing bench.

● Completed rock border leveling project across the red gravel pathways around the facility.

● Received and potted poinsettia plugs for December poinsettia sale and winter displays.

Buildings:
● Completed annual fitness center deep cleaning at RecPlex and Central Community Center.

● Installed new ceiling fans on the running track at RecPlex.

● Installed new TV’s in the fitness center at RecPlex.

● Added a TV message board at RecPlex.

● Painted foyer hallway and replaced the lighting at the Friendship Park Conservatory.

Page 138 



Fleet Services:
● Installed all new wiring, junction box, and lights on trailer #1.

● Decommissioned and cleaned old truck #33 in preparation for an online auction.

● Replaced faulty circuit breaker on Jacobsen mower for intermittent power loss.

● Drained and flushed cooling system on Toro 580D for overheating concern.

● Replaced A/C compressor, evaporator, and pressure sensor on truck #35.

Grounds:
● Applied new binder on the poured in place surfacing at Busse Park.

● Installed a replacement park sign panel at Dara James Park due to recent vandalism.

● Installed the second park sign at Weller Creek Park.

● Aerated/sliced the turf soccer fields at MSD and addressed weeds around softball fields.

● Planted a memorial tree at Clearwater Park.

Work Orders & Park Permits: At the time of this report, there have been approximately
36 internal work order requests for the month of July submitted and 35 park permits requests for
2024.

Page 139 



Community Relations & Marketing August 2024

Welcome to the new face of Mt. Prospect Fitness! The new logo (shown above) is the first step
in the official rebranding of the District’s fitness centers. With the prior and upcoming facility
center changes and improvements, it was time for a fresh start. CR&M has worked closely with
the Director of Recreation, Mike Azzaretto, and Fitness Supervisor, Tim Sullivan to capture the
right feel for the future of fitness at MPPD. Many design ideas and alternate versions were
considered and all agree that the new logo is fresh, bold and strong.

As we move forward into fall 2024 and winter 2025, the logo will continue to evolve along with
the planned facility improvements. Expect to see branded merchandise and many promotional
items incorporating the new logo. The logo will also be a bold part of the New Year 2025 fitness
marketing promotions.

As summer 2024 comes to a close, we look back at the promotional winners of the season. The
40th Anniversary Celebration of Big Surf was a perfectly nostalgic event with a great turnout,
beautiful weather and fun giveaways. Thank you to the Aquatics Team for putting the
anniversary on marketing’s radar while working together to make it a success!

Even with a summer of excess rain and humidity, both the Monday Night Community Band
Concert Series and Thursday Night Good Vibrations series were a great success! Sponsors
were on site most evenings with crowds of 300+ on Mondays and over 1500 on Thursdays for
Dancing Queen, 7th Heaven and Billy Elton. Thank you to Lions Facility and Performing Arts
Manager, Toria Smith, for her assistance in both marketing the events and facilitating the crowds
for both evenings.

The Grand Opening of Weller Creek Playground brought the largest number of neighbors and
patrons to a playground opening that any of us could remember. The project had great buzz
from the start and all marketing efforts via the website, social media and e-blasts continued to
build the excitement. This event will long be remembered by all in attendance.

The CR&M team is hard at work creating promotions for all fall events and programs!

Page 140 



CR&M Analytics & Updates

*Marketing tracks program analytics within 48 hours of posting and 2 business days of e-blasts.
While not all registrations are guaranteed to come from these things, there is a strong positive
correlation between marketing promotions and registration increases.

● Promoted Mt. Prospect Community Band Summer Concerts, Thursday Night Good
Vibrations Concerts, Weller Creek Playground Opening, Moana Movie Night, National
Night Out, 56 Artisan Fix, and Dance Season Premiere Party events via social media,
e-newsletters, website, flyers and banners.

● Created 2 targeted emails to announce RecPlex Pool Closure and Moana Movie Night
Rescheduled date

● Promoted Kids On Stage Fall Session and Art Studio Fairy Garden Class resulting in 3
registrations

● August Monthly E-Newsletter (8/2) resulted in 19,642 sends and 802 clicks

Upcoming Programs/Registrations/Events

● Saturday, August 24: Village of MP Celebration of Cultures, Kopp Park
● Wednesday, September 4: First day of Fall Dance
● Thursday, September 5: Kids Story Time, 10:30-11:00 AM, Friendship Park

Conservatory
● Wednesday, September 11: $1 Bingo Bonanza, 12:30-1:30 PM, Lions Recreation Center
● Friday, September 13: Rescheduled Kashmir Concert, 7:30 PM, Veterans Memorial

Bandshell
● Sunday, September 15: Fitness In The Park, 8:30-11:20 AM, Veterans Memorial

Bandshell
● Sunday, September 15: Family Open Paint Day, 1:00-3:00 PM, Art Studio
● Tuesday, September 17: Food Truck Roundup, 5:00-8:00 PM, Friendship Park
● Friday, September 20: Mt. Melas Jr. Adventure Run, 5:00-6:15 PM, Melas Park
● Wednesday, September 25: $1 Bingo Bonanza, 12:30-1:30 PM, Lions Recreation Center
● Wednesday, September 25: Dividing and Transplanting Perennials, 5:45-7:15 PM,

Friendship Park Conservatory
● Saturday, September 28: Fishing Derby, 8:00-11:00 AM, Clearwater Park
● Sunday, September 29: The Art Studio (Taylor’s Version), 1:00-3:30 PM, Art Studio

Page 141 



MOST ENGAGING SOCIAL MEDIA POSTS
Weller Creek Opening Invitation · A ROCKIN’ Night–7th Heaven 
New Lions Park Playground · Weller Creek Opening Album
Day Camp Night Album · Part-Time Sta� Appreciation Lunch Album

AUGUST 2024 Community Relations 
& Marketing

Page views to our website over the 
previous 30 days  |  54,685

MOST VIEWED PAGES
Big Surf Pool · Meadows Pool
Summer Concert Series · RecPlex · Program Guides 
RecPlex Pool · Friendship Park Conservatory
Jobs · Registration FAQ’s

Total Summer Program Guide 
Views 48,126

RESULTS
August E-newsletter
Open Rate 51%      Click Rate 4%

Page 142 



Tuesday, August 6 
5:30-8:30 PM

Veterans Memorial Bandshell
411 S. Maple Street, Mount Prospect

For more information, call 847-640-1000 or visit mountprospect.org/police

BRAVERY • COMPASSION •  PROFESSIONALISM •  COMPETENCE •  INTEGRITY • DEDICATION

Food Trucks
Toasty Cheese  •  Ernesto’s Tacos
Serna’s Grill  •  Kona Ice

Law Enforcement
Crime Scene Evaluation         
Emergency Vehicles
Community Emergency Response Team

Dress in aloha Attire 

Activities
Prize Wheel  •  Give-Aways  •  Balloon Animals
Bounce House  •  Obstacle Course

Entertainment
J.G. Reptile Show 5:45-6:30 PM
Music, Games and Contests 6:30-7:30 PM
The Barefoot Hawaiian 7:30-8:30 PM

#BringTheNeighborhood

Tropical Vibes

A Benefit for the Mt. Prospect Parks Foundation

At Friendship Park Conservatory 395 W. Algonquin Rd., Des Plaines

  imited Seating – Register Now
Includes dinner by Giuseppe’s, 
sweet treats and a cash bar. 

SummerCabaret
Soak in the beautiful summer setting while 

enjoying a timeless journey through the 
music of Billy Joel and Elton John

Featuring Reid Spears
Founder and lead vocalist 

of Billy Elton

Register in person at RecPlex 420 W. Dempster St.
OR Central Community Center 1000 W. Central Rd.
Details at mppd.org  |  847-640-1000

per person ($35 at the door)$30
Doors open at 4:30 PM – Entertainment at 6:00 PM

Sunday, August 18

2024

NATIONAL NIGHT OUT

SUMMER CABARET

WELLER CREEK PLAYGROUND OPENING

Join us for the

Weller Creek Playground Celebration
FRIDAY, JULY 26  |   5:00-7:00 PM

Refreshments 
and 

Give-A-WaysIn celebration of Robert “BoBo” Cardella 
who envisioned a playground at Weller Creek! All Are Welcome

Page 143 


